Doing Business
in Belarus
January 2020

This report is based on data
collected as of 1 January 2020.
2

Doing Business in Belarus

Contents
1. Foreword. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

5. Companies. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30

2. General information . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8

Legal forms .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 31

Geography .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 9
Climate.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 9
Population .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 9
Language.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 9
Time zone.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 11
State, national and other holidays.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 11
National currency. .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 11

3. The Belarusian Economy. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12

Licensing .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 33
Mergers and acquisitions.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 33
Shareholders’ agreements.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 33
Tax overview. .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 34
Corporate income tax. .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 36
Withholding tax .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 44
Value-added tax.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 46
Real estate tax.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 50
Other taxes. .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 51

Exports and imports. .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 13

Special taxation regimes .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 53

Key economic trends.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 15

Customs regulation .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 54

Leading industries .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 16

Financial reporting and auditing .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 57

Trends in the IT industry .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 17
Legislative developments. .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 18
The financial system. .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 19
Currency control. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19

4. Investment legislation and key investment
incentives . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22
Investment legislation .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 23
Investment agreement with the Republic
of Belarus.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 23
Free economic zones.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 24
The Great Stone China-Belarus Industrial Park.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 26
Business activity in medium-sized and small towns
and rural areas.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 27
The Hi-Tech Park. .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 28

6. Individuals. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 64
Employment.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 65
Migration legislation .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 66
Personal income tax.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 68
Payroll taxes.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 72

7. Appendix. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 76
Appendix 1. Useful addresses and contact information .  .  .  . 77
Appendix 2. Currency exchange rates (as at the end
of the period) adjusted for the 2016 reform of
the Belarusian rouble.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 79
Appendix 3. Economic indicators. .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 79
Appendix 4. Withholding tax rates under double
tax treaties .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 80

Doing Business in Belarus

1

1

Foreword

2

Doing Business in Belarus

Pavel
Laschenko
EY Belarus
Managing Partner

“

In this anniversary year for our practice we are pleased to present our ninth
“Doing Business in Belarus” report.
It was in 2000 that EY opened its Minsk office and the first employee was hired.
Now, EY is the largest international audit and consulting firm in Belarus, employing over
550 people.
We continuously invest in our employees’ knowledge and professional growth and are
committed to improving the quality of our services, offering effective and innovative
solutions for businesses. We are proud of the fact that, through our knowledge, skills
and experience, we help not only our clients, but also the community at large, bringing
us closer to our goal of changing the world for the better.
Global and regional geopolitical and economic processes have a major impact on the
business climate, investment strategy and government policy. Building on the principle of
openness to the world and its commitment to an independent and multidirectional foreign
policy, Belarus is steadily working to improve its investment climate and create favourable
conditions for attracting investment and doing business. Over its 20 years working in
Belarus, EY has helped companies adapt to the changing business environment as state
investment policies have evolved and improved.
This report, prepared by EY professionals, presents an overview of the Belarusian tax
system, corporate forms, business practices and accounting and financial reporting
principles.
We hope that our report will give you an insight into the opportunities and prospects
for doing business in Belarus.
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Alexander
Chervyakov
Minister of Economy
of the Republic of Belarus

“

The Belarusian economy maintained its growth trajectory in 2019, achieving some of the best
results in modern times across a range of key macroeconomic indicators. While inflation and
the refinancing rate fell, gold and currency reserves grew to a record high. Our current account
deficit remained low for the third year running, while the budget is operating at a surplus. All
our debt obligations are being met, and there is steady growth in investment activity.
The Ministry of Economy is now working on cementing the positive achievements in the
economy while tackling the weaknesses that remain.
A 2020 action plan to deliver sustainable, balanced medium-term growth has been approved.
Preparation of the National Strategy for Sustainable Development to 2035 is nearing
completion, and work on the development programme for the next five years is underway.
We are committed to remaining open to dialogue and mutually beneficial ventures with
businesses that perceive Belarus as the place to bring their forward-looking ideas to life.
To help attract investment, we have developed our investment legislation in line with best
practices and continue to review and update it on a systematic basis.
In 2020 the Belarusian Law “On Investments” is expected to undergo a thorough overhaul
aimed at strengthening guarantees for investors.
A key role in improving the investment climate will be played by the Medium-Term Action Plan,
which will include amendments to laws and regulations concerning property and land, customs
and taxation. The plan is a crucial component of the Strategy for Foreign Direct Investment
Attraction to 2025.
The immediate priorities as far as increasing Belarus’s investment appeal is concerned are to
put in place effective investor feedback systems, digitize the process of obtaining permissions
and approvals needed for investment activities and step up work on preparing infrastructure
projects, including through the use of progressive public-private partnerships.
Our long-term objective is to create the most competitive business and investment environment
in the EAEU.
I would like to assure you that any investment proposals aimed at the implementation and
development of mutually beneficial business projects in our country will receive our fullest
attention.
Welcome to Belarus!
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Maksim
Ermolovich
Minister of Finance
of the Republic of Belarus

“

Attracting direct foreign investment is key to the development of the Belarusian economy.
Over the last few years Belarus has seen a rise in investment by direct foreign investors,
due in part to reforms aimed at improving the business climate.
The Finance Ministry is making efforts to improve tax, accounting and auditing legislation
and increase the transparency and reliability of the financial reporting framework in line with
global best practices.
Belarus has adopted International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and made them
mandatory for a range of entities. A bill has been proposed that would require IFRS to be
used by state entities that meet certain criteria.
Under the new version of the Belarusian law on auditing activities, the Audit Chamber
has been set up as a central self-regulatory organization of audit firms and self-employed
auditors. A register of auditors, self-employed auditors and audit firms has been created.
Work is underway to enable International Standards on Auditing and the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants to be enacted in Belarus.
Harmonizing domestic legislation with international financial reporting standards would help
boost Belarus’s placing in international rankings and strengthen its credentials as a country
that is open to reform and investment.
I would like to express my personal gratitude to EY for its active role in helping to improve
financial legislation and its significant contribution to the development of new technologies
and the accounting and auditing professions. I wish everyone at the company continued
success.
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Andrey
Yevdochenko
First Deputy Minister
of Foreign Affairs of
the Republic of Belarus

“

Belarus today is a country with an open economy that affords opportunities for doing
business, starting and developing new ventures and pursuing innovation.
Belarus offers attractive conditions for investment with free economic zones in all regions,
the Bremino-Orsha Special Economic Zone, the Great Stone Industrial Park and the
High-Tech Park.
Belarus has become a veritable “IT nation”. In an age when digitalization affects all
industries, Belarusian IT specialists are in high demand and capable of offering contemporary
solutions for achieving market growth. Belarus is one of the global leaders in terms of
Internet access for its population.
Belarus’s advantageous geographical position is conducive to successful transport and
logistics projects, including within the framework of the Silk Road Economic Belt.
Constant efforts are being made to improve the business climate and enhance support for
exports. Presidential Edict No. 412 of 14 November 2019 allows exporters to recover up to
50 per cent of the cost of participating in specialized international exhibitions and submitting
products for conformity assessment in foreign states.
The development of business ties and tourism has been aided by further liberalization of
the country’s visa rules. Visa-free entry has been extended to 30 days for arrivals via Minsk
National Airport and 15 days for visits to the Brest-Grodno regional zone.
Continued participation in integration processes is a key element of Belarusian foreign policy.
From 1 January 2020 Belarus will chair bodies of the Eurasian Economic Union. From
1 February 2020 a Belarusian representative will hold the post of Chairman of the Eurasian
Economic Commission, the EAEU’s chief executive body, for a period of four years. His main
tasks will be to oversee the free movement of goods, services, capital and labour and the
formation of unified markets within the EAEU.
As a member of the EAEU, Belarus already de facto lives in accordance with the core
principles of the World Trade Organization. One of the Government’s strategic objectives
for 2020 is to complete the process of negotiating accession to the WTO.
I am confident that this Doing Business in Belarus report will provide a further opportunity
for our partners, both present and future, to appreciate the advantages and benefits of doing
business with our country.
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Vladimir
Ulakhovich
Chairman of the Belarusian
Chamber of Commerce
and Industry

“

When it comes to doing business abroad, every success story begins with studying local
conditions on the target market, researching the regulatory environment for business and
investment and identifying entrepreneurial opportunities. With time at a premium and such
a glut of available data, it is vital for today’s business leader to have a reliable source of
up-to-date, accurate and structured information at his or her fingertips.
For the last nine years now, EY’s annual “Doing Business in Belarus” report has served as a
powerful information tool for foreign investors that have chosen Belarus as the place to put
their projects and ideas into practice.
Year after year, Belarus continues to prove its appeal to the foreign business community.
The country’s calling card is its openness to foreign visitors and business partners and its
willingness to engage in dialogue and support mutually beneficial initiatives.
Belarus has established a reputation for offering a stable, user-friendly and predictable
environment for doing business. This has been achieved through the adoption in recent years
of laws and regulations designed to liberalize the economy, foster a favourable business
climate and promote entrepreneurship. As well as an effective legal framework that gives
investors the guarantees they need, the country offers a range of benefits and incentives for
companies looking to launch projects here, in whatever field it might be. The incentives aimed
at developing the digital economy pave the way for Belarus to become a leading IT nation.
With preferential regimes covering almost its entire territory, a developed transport and
logistics infrastructure giving direct access to the vast EAEU market, a commitment to
the modernization of and use of best practices in manufacturing and the service sector, a
high potential in education, science and technology and a visa-free regime for visitors and
business people from 74 countries, Belarus can firmly claim to be a country of extensive
opportunities for starting and doing business.
On the pages that follow, you will find information on the country’s tax policies, available
business structures and approaches to doing business. I hope that the information gleaned
from this report will convince you that Belarus really is an attractive place to invest and will
serve as a starting point for embarking on successful business ventures.
For its part, the Belarusian Chamber of Commerce and Industry will do its utmost to facilitate
business ties between Belarusian and foreign companies and render practical assistance in
the organization of long-term partnerships.
I wish you every success in your constructive endeavours!
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Geography

Climate

Belarus is situated in the heart of
Europe, at the crossroads of trade
routes from west to east and north to
south. The shortest transport routes
between the CIS and Western Europe
run across the country. Belarus is
bordered by Lithuania and Latvia in the
north, Ukraine in the south, Russia in
the east and Poland in the west and is
strategically positioned as a transport
corridor between west and east and
between north and south. From
Minsk, it is 500 kilometres to Warsaw,
700 kilometres to Moscow,
1,060 kilometres to Berlin and
1,300 kilometres to Vienna.

Belarus has a moderate continental
climate featuring mild winters with
frequent thaws and rainy, warm
summers. It has average temperatures
of –6°C in January and +18°C in July
and an average annual precipitation of
550-700 millimetres.

Belarus covers a total area of
207,600 square kilometres, stretching
560 kilometres from north to south and
650 kilometres from west to east. It is
larger than Austria, Ireland, Portugal
or Greece. The country’s capital, Minsk,
is on the same latitude as Hamburg
and Dublin. Belarus’s highest point,
Dzerzhinsky Hill (345 meters above sea
level), is in the Minsk Region. Its lowest
point is the Neman Valley in the Grodno
Region (80-90 meters above sea level).
Administratively, the territory is divided
into six regions.

Population
Belarus has a population of
approximately 9.4 million. It is a multiethnic country. 77.5% of its inhabitants
live in urban areas.

Language
The official languages of Belarus are
Belarusian and Russian. The languages
most commonly used for business are
Russian, English and German.

207,600 km

2

the total area
of Belarus

Minsk
the capital
of Belarus

~9.4 million
people live in Belarus

Vitebsk

Minsk

Mogilev

Grodno

Gomel
Brest
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Time zone
Belarus is in the FET time zone (UTC+3).
It has abolished daylight saving time.
The table below shows flight times
between Minsk and some major cities.
City

Flight time

London

3 hours

Moscow

1 hour 20 minutes

Paris
Frankfurt

3 hours
2 hours 25 minutes

• Day of the State Coat of Arms and
State Flag of the Republic of Belarus –
second Sunday in May
• Independence Day (Republic Day) —
3 July
National holidays:
• New Year — 1, 2 January
• Day of Defenders of the Fatherland
and the Armed Forces of the Republic
of Belarus — 23 February
• Women’s Day — 8 March

Sources: http://www.timeanddate.com/,
http://www.airport.by.

• Labour Day — 1 May

State, national
and other holidays

Religious holidays:

Holidays marked in bold are official
non-working days in Belarus.

• Easter — according to the Orthodox
and Catholic calendars

State holidays:

• Radunitsa — according to the
Orthodox calendar

• Constitution Day — 15 March
• Day of Unity of the Peoples of
Belarus and Russia — 2 April

• October Revolution Day —
7 November

If an official non-working public holiday
falls on a weekend, additional days
of rest are not normally granted.
If a designated public holiday falls on
a Tuesday or Thursday, the Monday
immediately preceding or Friday
immediately following it usually
becomes an official non-working day,
while the Saturday nearest to the
holiday date becomes a working day.

National currency
The Belarusian rouble (BYN, or BYR
until 1 July 2016) is the official
monetary unit of the Republic of
Belarus.

• Orthodox Christmas — 7 January

• Remembrance Day — 2 November
• Catholic Christmas — 25 December

• Victory Day — 9 May

Doing Business in Belarus

11

3

The Belarusian
Economy

12

Doing Business in Belarus

Exports and imports
Belarus has trading relationships
with over 170 countries. In 2019,
five countries accounted for 69% of
Belarusian exports and 20 countries
accounted for 88%, with 41% of
exports going to Russia. This shows
that Belarusian exports are heavily
dependent both on the global market
environment and on the economic
health of the country’s principal trading
partners. For example, around 74%
of agricultural produce, equipment,
vehicles and textile products exported
from Belarus goes to Russia. At the
same time, exports of mineral products
and chemicals are more diversified.
In 2019 Belarus’s total trade in goods
and services amounted to USD 84.2
billion, including exports of USD 41.9
billion and imports of USD 42.2 billion.
This equates to 100.7%, 99.2% and
102.1% respectively of the levels for
2018. Belarus actively imports and
exports goods: in 2019, USD 32.3
billion worth of goods were exported
(96.7% of the level for 2018), while
imports amounted to USD 36.4 billion
(101.3% of the 2018 figure).

The main imports were mineral
products (which accounted for 25.6%
of the total), machinery, equipment
and vehicles (24.3%), and food and
agricultural products (11.6%).
Belarus’s export and import
performance is largely dependent on
its relationship with Russia, its largest
trading partner. Its foreign trade
with other countries is traditionally
dominated by petroleum products made
from Russian crude.
Russia accounts for 46.0% of Belarus’s
total foreign trade. Its second-largest
trading partner is the European Union.
In 2019, Russia accounted for 36.5% of
exports and 55.5% of imports. The fall
in the volume of exports to Russia in
the period 2013-2015 was due to the
devaluation of the Russian rouble, which
made the Belarusian rouble “dearer”,
thus reducing demand for Belarusian
products in Russia. However, in 20162017 exports increased on the back of a
stronger Russian rouble.

>170

countries have trading
relationships with Belarus

~69%

of Belarusian exports in 2019
went to five countries

84.2

USD billion

Belarus’s total foreign trade
in goods and services in 2019

Principal exports in 2019 were mineral
products (21.5%), chemical products
(13.7%), machinery, equipment
and vehicles (16.5%), and food and
agricultural products (16.6%).
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Belarus’s international trade in goods, 2012-2019

Structure of exports, 2019

million US$

30,000

21.5%
Mineral products

20,000

16.6%

10,000

0

Food and agricultural products

2012

2013

Exports to Russia

2014

2015

2016

2017

Exports to non-CIS countries

2018

2019

Exports to other CIS countries

16.5%
Machinery, equipment
and vehicles

13.7%

30,000

million US$

Chemicals
20,000

31.7%
Other

10,000

0

2012

2013

Imports from Russia

2014

2015

2016

2017

Imports from non-CIS countries

2018

2019

Imports from other CIS countries

Source: National Statistical Committee of the Republic of Belarus, 2019.

The structure of Belarus’s trade with
countries outside the CIS has remained
unchanged over the last five years. Its
exports to such countries consisted
primarily of commodities, including
energy products (petroleum products,
crude oil, liquefied gas) and fertilizers.

Other commodity exports included
ferrous metals, timber and related
products. Mineral products make up
37.1% of Belarus’s exports to countries
outside the EAEU, while imports are
dominated by machinery and equipment
(24.8%).

Structure of imports, 2019

25.6%
Mineral products

24.3%
Machinery, equipment
and vehicles

11.6%
Food and agricultural products

38.5%
Other
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Key economic
trends
In recent years, the Belarusian
government has focused mainly on
restoring macroeconomic health
after a period of decline: stabilizing
the national currency, slowing down
inflation and improving the balance
of trade. Measures taken by the
government and the National Bank of
the Republic of Belarus (NBRB) to this
end have included gradually reducing
the refinancing rate, cutting the interest
rate on liquidity instruments, assessing
the quality of the assets of major
Belarusian banks, redenominating the
Belarusian rouble at a ratio of 1:10,000
in July 2016, and gradually relaxing the
requirement for the mandatory sale of
foreign exchange earnings, which was
abolished altogether in August 2018.
These measures have helped strengthen
the Belarusian rouble. Inflation has
slowed significantly, standing at 4.7%
in 2019 (compared with 5.6% in 2018,
4.6% in 2017 and 10.6% in 2016).
According to the NBRB, annual inflation
is slowing down, and the outlook in the
overall economy, in foreign trade and
on the currency and deposit markets
indicates that monetary factors are
likely to keep inflation within the target
parameters.

An important priority in the next few
years will be to keep inflation close to
the current level to ensure that prices
do not rise by more than the targeted
5% in 2020.
On 14 August 2019 the refinancing
rate was cut from 10% to 9.5% per
annum, and on 20 November 2019 it
was reduced further to 9% (a historical
low). Interest rates on permanent and
bilateral liquidity instruments have fallen
from 11.5% to 10% per annum.
Belarus’s national debt continued
to grow during 2018, reaching
BYN 45.4 billion as at 1 January 2019,
which was BYN 3.2 billion, or 7.6%,
higher than on 1 January 2018. As
at 1 January 2020 the national debt
stood at BYN 44.8 billion, which was
BYN 0.6 billion lower than at the start
of the year.
The Belarusian economy has entered
an upturn phase after two years of
recession and the recovery of GDP
growth in 2017. This has been driven
primarily by external factors and a
stronger focus on stimulating investor
and consumer demand. In 2018 GDP
grew by 3.1%. In 2019 real GDP grew
by 1.2% (compared with 2018).

1.2%

real GDP growth compared
to 2018

9.0%

the refinancing rate has reached
a historical low

4.7%

the inflation rate in 2019
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Leading industries
Belarus’s GDP structure has undergone
a number of changes over the last few
years, reflecting wider developments
in the country’s economy. Firstly, in
2015 the service sector became the
chief component of GDP for the first
time in Belarus’s independent history.
This may be partly attributed to
determined efforts on the part of the
government and the rapid growth of
sectors such as IT, telecommunications,
wholesale and retail. However, Belarus’s
dependence on its main trading partner
for commodities, the fall in energy prices
on global markets and the contraction
in industrial output caused by economic
problems in Belarus itself and in Russia
were also key contributory factors.

Industrial output in nominal terms
amounted to BYN 113.5 billion in 2019.
The industrial production index for 2019
was 101% relative to 2018.
Manufacturing represented an important
part of Belarusian industry in 2019,
accounting for 88.6% of output.
In 2019 the most significant increases
in manufacturing in the industrial sector
were in the production of vehicles
and equipment (up by 35%) and the
production of food, beverages and
tobacco products (up by 9.9%).
Other industrial sectors had little impact
on overall performance for 2019.

Belarus’s manufacturing industry
by sector in 2019
23.3%

27.5%

7.5%
7.3%

16.6%
7.4%

10.4%

 ood, beverages and
F
tobacco products
 oke and petroleum
C
products
Chemicals
 achinery and equipment
M
not included in other
categories

 ubber and plastic products
R
and other non-metal mineral
products
 etals and ﬁnished metal
M
products, excluding
machinery and equipment
Other products

Source: National Statistical Committee of the Republic
of Belarus, 2019.
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Trends in the
IT industry

Growth in the number of HTP residents and ICT companies
751

The dynamic development of Belarus’s
IT industry is aided by targeted
incentives, a “regulatory sandbox”type legal regime for residents of the
Hi-Tech Park to facilitate the testing
of innovative legal approaches, and
legislative initiatives that are responsive
to the latest technological trends. The
issue of Presidential Decree No. 8 of
21 December 2017 “On the
Development of the Digital Economy”
boosted the number of HTP resident
companies from 161 in 2016 to 454
in 2018, rising to 751 by the end of
2019. The total number of companies
operating in the information and
communications technology (ICT)
sector has risen by 26% since 2016.

454
161
2016

191

2017

2018

Number of HTP residents

Although more than 90% of HTP
resident companies are based in Minsk,
a trend towards the regionalization of
the IT sector has been observed over
the last few years.
ICT services made up 21.2% of total
service exports in 2018, compared with
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Sources: National Statistical Committee of the
Republic of Belarus, 2019
Official website of the Administration of the Hi-Tech
Park of the Republic of Belarus, http://www.park.by

2018

4492

4996

•o
 f which,
IT companies

2323

2619

3123

85,405 92,193 100,655

17% in 2016. ICT accounted for 5.6% of
Belarus’s total GDP in 2018 (compared
with 4.5% in 2016).
Exports of services of HTP resident
companies grew by 52% in 2019 over
2018, amounting to USD 2.1 billion.

+52%
2.1*
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Sources: National Statistical Committee of the Republic of Belarus, 2019
Official website of the Administration of the Hi-Tech Park of the Republic of Belarus, http://www.park.by

HTP exports, USD billion
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2016

Number of companies
in ICT sector

Average annual
payroll number
of employees in
ICT sector, persons

2019

Share of ICT services in total
exports of services, %
21.2
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2014

0.7
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0.8
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Sources: National Statistical Committee of the Republic of Belarus, 2019
Official website of the Administration of the Hi-Tech Park of the Republic of Belarus, http://www.park.by
* https://www.belta.by/economics/view/janchevskij-o-vizite-pompeo-v-pvt-eto-horoshij-znak-dlja-razvitijabiznesa-378047-2020/.
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Legislative
developments
The last few years have seen positive
trends towards the liberalization of
Belarusian legislation. Conditions for
doing business are improving each
year, and there is a clear commitment
to minimizing state interference in
companies’ activities. In particular:
• Efforts are being made to maximize
the use of information technology
in all interactions between state
authorities and companies, as
reflected in the increased number
of administrative procedures that
can be undertaken online
• There has been a shift from
authorization to notification
requirements for some administrative
procedures. In 2018, for example,
there was a significant reduction in
the number of currency transactions
requiring authorization by the
NBRB. The process of obtaining
authorization has been replaced by a
registration or notification procedure
• The number of activities subject
to licensing is decreasing and
requirements for obtaining licences
are being relaxed. A policy has been
adopted of requiring licences only
for activities that carry potential
threats to state or public interests,
the environment, human life and
health and the rights and legitimate
interests of citizens

18
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Belarusian legislation is gradually
evolving to keep pace with the
times. The parliament is currently in
the process of considering a bill of
amendments to company law which
includes a raft of new provisions.
Belarus’s legal system is increasingly
reflective of global trends and includes
new provisions and institutions such as:
• Shareholders’ agreements.
Provisions concerning shareholders’
agreements were introduced in
Belarusian legislation in 2015,
with additional rules later added for
residents of the High-Tech Park,
such as the possibility for such
agreements to be governed by
foreign law regardless of whether
there is a foreign element in the
transaction (citizenship (residence)
of individuals or place of foundation
(registration, business) of legal
entities)

• Elements of English law. By way of
a legal experiment to assess the
feasibility of incorporating new
legal institutions into Belarusian
civil law, residents of the High-Tech
Park have been granted the right,
for example, to conclude convertible
loan agreements, option agreements
and indemnity agreements with
each other and/or third parties,
non-competition agreements with
their employees and non-solicitation
agreements with third parties
The last few years have also seen
numerous changes in Belarusian law
aimed at easing conditions for foreign
entities in areas such as employment
and migration. A number of employment
and migration benefits have been put in
place for foreign residents of the HighTech Park and the Great Stone ChinaBelarus Industrial Park. Furthermore,
visa-free entry to Belarus has now been
extended to 30 days for citizens of
74 states.

The financial system

Currency control

Regulator of banks and non-bank
financial institutions

General principles

The NBRB regulates the activities
of banks and non-bank financial
institutions and licenses banking
activities. A banking licence allows
banks to carry out various banking
operations, including taking deposits
from individuals and/or legal entities,
opening and maintaining accounts
for individuals and/or legal entities,
providing settlement and cash services
for individuals and/or legal entities,
performing currency exchange
operations, issuing bank guarantees,
and providing cash management and
factoring services. There are special
requirements for certain types of
banking operations.
Stock exchange and securities
market regulator
The Securities Department of the
Belarusian Finance Ministry is
vested with executive, supervisory,
coordinating and regulatory functions
as the body in charge of the state
regulation of the securities market.
It oversees the issue, trading and
redemption of securities and the
activities of professional participants in
the securities market. It also provides
support to the Ministry of Finance in
regulating securitization arrangements
and investment funds.

Currency controls have historically
been a source of uncertainty for foreign
investors operating in Belarus. However,
state control in this area is being
gradually relaxed through measures
designed to ease currency restrictions
(including reduced penalties for
currency violations) and de-dollarize the
Belarusian economy.
As a rule, payments between residents
must take place in Belarusian roubles.
Exceptional cases in which foreign
currency (or securities or payment
instruments in foreign currency) may
be used in payments between residents
are laid down in Law No. 226-Z of
22 July 2003 “On Currency Regulation
and Currency Control” (the “Currency
Control Law”), Resolution No. 72 of the
NBRB of 30 April 2004 “On Approval
of the Rules for Carrying out Currency
Transactions” (“Resolution No. 72”) and
other regulatory acts. Residents may
express the price of a contract in any
foreign currency, but payments must
still be made in Belarusian roubles only
(unless currency legislation explicitly
permits otherwise).

Entities classed as non-residents
under currency law
Non-residents include:
• Foreign citizens and stateless
persons (other than persons holding
Belarusian residence permits)
• Legal entities and unincorporated
organizations established under the
laws of foreign states and located
outside Belarus, and branches and
representative offices thereof located
in Belarus and other countries
Restrictions on transactions between
residents and non-residents
Under the Currency Control Law,
all transactions involving the use of
foreign currency or Belarusian roubles
(securities or payment instruments in
foreign currency or Belarusian roubles)
between residents and non-residents
are regarded as currency transactions,
which are divided into current and capital
transactions.
There is a finite list of current currency
transactions. Capital currency
transactions include all currency
transactions that are not classed as
current transactions. In 2019, as part
of currency liberalization measures,
substantial amendments were made
to Resolution No. 72 which lifted
all restrictions on current currency
transactions between residents and
non-residents.
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Previously, residents needed permission
from the NBRB to carry out capital
currency transactions, except in certain
cases. As from 2019, transactions must
be registered rather than authorized,
meaning that capital currency
transactions now take place:
• Without NBRB authorization
or registration or notification
requirements (there is a finite list of
such transactions)
• Subject only to a registration
requirement (there is a finite list of
such transactions)
• Subject only to a notification
requirement (all other capital currency
transactions)
Current currency transactions
Current currency transactions include
the following transactions between
residents and non-residents:
• Payments for exported and/or
imported goods (excluding cash,
securities and immovable property),
protected information, exclusive
rights to results of intellectual
activity, and work and services
• Payments in respect of transactions
involving the rental/leasing of
property
• The transfer and receipt of dividends
and other income on investments
• Non-trade operations (the transfer
and receipt of cash to pay salaries,
pensions or monies forming part of
an inheritance, transfers associated
with the payment of state duties,
etc.)
20
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Capital currency transactions not
requiring NBRB authorization and not
subject to registration or notification
requirements
The following capital currency
transactions may be carried out without
obtaining NBRB authorization and
without registration or notification
requirements:
• The sale to a non-resident of an equity
interest in a resident legal entity

• The settlement of obligations of
a resident surety or guarantor to
a non-resident on the basis of the
surety or guarantee agreement
concluded between them
• The receipt of credits/loans
Opening of accounts by resident
entities with non-resident banks

• Transactions involving securities
issued by residents

Resident entities (other than banks)
require authorization from the NBRB to
open accounts with non-resident banks
except in the following cases:

• Contributions by non-residents to the
capital of a resident legal entity in
foreign currency or Belarusian roubles
or in the form of securities

• Authorization is not required to
open loan accounts or accounts of
diplomatic, consular and other official
missions of the Republic of Belarus

Capital currency transactions subject
only to a registration requirement

• The opening of accounts for
representative offices of resident
entities (other than banks) is subject
to a notification requirement

The registration requirement for capital
currency transactions entails the
registration with a bank of the foreign
trade contract under which a currency
transaction takes place.
The following types of capital currency
transactions are subject only to a
registration requirement:
• The depositing of funds with nonresident banks or the transfer of
funds to non-residents (other than
non-resident banks) under a fiduciary
arrangement
• The issue of loans

Special requirements relating to
foreign trade contracts
Registration of foreign trade contracts
Foreign trade contracts must be
registered with a bank if total
consideration for goods supplied under
the contract, including appendices and
addenda, amounts to the equivalent of
EUR 3,000 or more.

Foreign trade contracts do not have
to be registered with a bank where
they involve the supply of protected
information, exclusive intellectual
property rights, work or services. Banks
do not charge a fee for the registration
of foreign trade contracts.
Fulfilment of obligations under foreign
trade contracts
Residents are required to complete any
foreign trade transaction within the
following timeframe:
• In the case of exports – payment
must be received no later than

180 calendar days after the date
on which goods (including protected
information and exclusive intellectual
property rights) were supplied, work
was performed or services were
rendered
• In the case of imports – goods
(including protected information,
exclusive intellectual property rights
and results of work or services)
must be received no later than
90 calendar days after the date
on which payment was made. This
requirement applies only to import
transactions in which the resident
made payment in advance

These time limits may be extended by
the NBRB subject to conditions set by
the Council of Ministers and the NBRB.
The Council of Ministers and the
NBRB have set longer completion
timeframes for certain types of
foreign trade contracts. In the case
of export contracts for the supply
of pharmaceutical products by their
producers, for example, residents must
ensure that non-residents complete the
transactions no later than 365 days
after the date on which goods were
shipped.
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Investment
legislation and key
investment incentives
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Investment legislation
The main documents regulating
investment activities in Belarus are
Law No. 53-Z of 12 July 2013 “On
Investments”, Law No. 63-Z of 12 July
2013 “On Concessions”, Presidential
Decree No. 10 of 6 August 2009
“On the Creation of Additional
Conditions for Investment Activity in the
Republic of Belarus” and Law No. 345-Z
of 30 December 2015 “On PublicPrivate Partnership”.
The Law “On Investments” defines
investments as any assets or other
objects of civil rights which an investor
owns or has the right to dispose of
and which it invests in Belarus in ways
provided for in that law for the purpose
of earning profit (income) and/or
achieving some other significant result
or for other purposes not connected
with personal, family, domestic or
similar use, including:
• Movable and immovable property,
including shares, equity interests or
units in a business entity established
in Belarus, and money, including
borrowed money (loans and credits)
• Debt claims having a monetary value
• Other objects of civil rights having a
monetary value, other than restricted
or prohibited items

Investments in Belarus are made:
• By establishing a business entity
• By acquiring or creating immovable
property, including by means of
construction
• By acquiring intellectual property
rights
• By acquiring shares, equity interests
or units in a business entity, including
through capital contributions
• On a concession basis
• In other ways not prohibited by
Belarusian law
The Law “On Investments” also:
• Sets out the basic principles
governing investment activities in
Belarus
• Sets out compensation arrangements
for expropriated assets that are
investments or were created as a
result of investment activity
• Designates bodies authorized to
resolve disputes (disagreements)
between foreign investors and the
Republic of Belarus
Below is a summary of the rules
governing various forms of investment
activity.

Investment agreement
with the Republic
of Belarus
An investment agreement is a special
kind of agreement that is concluded
to provide additional state support
for investment projects. Investment
agreements are concluded between a
foreign or domestic investor/investors
and the Republic of Belarus represented
by the Council of Ministers or another
central government body.
An investment agreement may be
concluded only for the purpose of
carrying out an investment project in
an industry/sector designated by the
Council of Ministers as having priority
status for investment purposes.
Two levels of investment agreements
An investment agreement may be
concluded on the basis of a decision of
any of the following state bodies:
• A central government body, another
state organization subordinate to the
Council of Ministers, the Executive
Office of the President of the
Republic of Belarus (“President”),
or a regional or Minsk city executive
committee
• The Council of Ministers subject
to approval by the President
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Incentives under an investment
agreement
Regardless of the contracting authority
representing Belarus, all types of
investment agreements offer a range of
benefits. The most important of these
are:
• The option to break down a
construction project into stages
and carry out construction work
simultaneously with design work for
the next stages, provided that the
preliminary design has been duly
approved
• The granting of a land parcel included
in the list of land parcels designated
for investment projects without the
holding of an auction for the lease,
development or sale of the land
parcel
• The right to remove vegetation
during the construction stage without
paying compensation
• Full deduction of VAT paid on the
purchase (or importation into
Belarus) of goods, services/work or
property rights used in constructing
and fitting out facilities under the
investment agreement
• Exemption from statutory
requirements in selecting a
contractor/project designer and
suppliers of goods and services for
the construction (or reconstruction)
of facilities (except for public
procurement of goods and services/
work)
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• Exemption from customs duty and
VAT on the importation of production
equipment (and related components
and spare parts) solely for use in
Belarus for the purposes of the
investment project

Investors are entitled to other incentives
provided for in Belarusian legislation
over and above those granted on the
basis of an investment agreement.

• Exemption from fees for the right
to conclude a lease agreement for a
land parcel leased without auction
for the purpose of the construction
of facilities under the investment
agreement

Incentives granted by the President

• Exemption from state duty for the
issue (extension) of permits to
employ foreign labour in Belarus and
individual work permits for foreigners
and stateless persons hired to work in
Belarus under the investment project;
in addition, such foreigners and
stateless persons are exempt from
state duty for the issue of Belarusian
temporary residence permits
• Exemption from the payment of
compensation for losses to the
agricultural and/or forestry sectors
resulting from the use of a land parcel
under the investment agreement
• Exemption from land tax on land
parcels in state or private ownership
and from rent on state-owned land
parcels provided for the construction
of facilities under the investment
agreement, for the period starting
from the first day of the month in
which the investment agreement took
effect until 31 December of the year
following the year in which the last
of the facilities planned under the
investment agreement was brought
into use

Investment agreements concluded by
decision of the Belarusian Council of
Ministers with the permission of the
President may offer additional incentives
and benefits not expressly provided
for in legislation. Such incentives are
provided on a case-by-case basis.

Free economic zones
A free economic zone (FEZ) is a
bounded part of the territory of Belarus
with a special regime that enables
residents of the zone to enjoy more
favourable conditions for doing business
than under the normal rules.
Six FEZs have been established
in Belarus for the period until
31 December 2049, namely the “Brest”,
“Minsk”, “Gomel-Raton”, “Vitebsk”,
“Mogilev” and “Grodnoinvest” FEZs.

FEZ residents
Belarusian companies located within a
FEZ may register as a resident of that
FEZ if they undertake to invest at least
EUR 1 million in an investment project
in the FEZ, or at least EUR 500,000 if
the entire sum is invested within three
years.

Tax benefits
FEZs are designed to encourage
investment in the production of exportoriented or import-substituting goods or
services in Belarus. They offer residents
a number of tax incentives relating to
the sale of such goods or services for
export and to other FEZ residents.
Tax incentives include:

• Exemption from real estate tax for
property located in the taxpayer’s
FEZ, provided that the resident
carries on activities covered by the
FEZ tax regime; however, property
acquired or created during the first
three years after registration as an
FEZ resident is exempt from real
estate tax regardless of whether
activities covered by the FEZ tax
regime were carried on during that
period
• Exemption from land tax and rent
on state-owned land parcels located
within the boundaries of the FEZ
which are granted for construction
purposes, for the period until the last
facility has been brought into use, but
for no longer than five years after
registration as a FEZ resident

• Exemption from CIT on income
received by producers from
selling their own goods
and services/work
Vitebsk

Minsk

Mogilev

Grodno

Gomel
Brest

• Exemption from land tax and rent
on state-owned land parcels located
within the boundaries of the FEZ
regardless of their designated use,
provided that the resident carries
on activities covered by the FEZ tax
regime

Customs benefits
A free economic zone is designated as a
free customs zone where goods (whether
of foreign or EAEU origin) may be stored
and used by FEZ residents in accordance
with customs law without the payment
of customs duties, taxes or special,
anti-dumping or countervailing duties.
Subsequent customs clearance and tax/
duty requirements depend on the status
of products made from goods placed
under the free customs zone procedure
and their destination country.
For instance, products manufactured
in a FEZ solely from EAEU goods are
classed as EAEU goods and are placed
under the re-importation procedure
when moved out of the FEZ into the
remaining part of the customs territory
of the EAEU without any customs duties
or taxes having to be paid. Products
manufactured in a FEZ that are classed
as foreign goods are placed under the
re-exportation procedure when moved
out of the EAEU and are likewise not
subject to customs duties or taxes. If
such products are moved out of the
FEZ into the remaining part of the
customs territory of the EAEU, they are
placed under the release for domestic
consumption customs procedure and are
subject to import duties but exempt from
VAT.
Doing Business in Belarus
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The Great Stone
China-Belarus Industrial
Park
The Great Stone China-Belarus Industrial
Park (CBIP) was established in 2012
with support from China as a hub for
firms at the cutting edge of innovation
and technology. The CBIP is located 25
kilometres from Minsk, occupying a total
area of 112.47 square kilometres.
The territory of the CBIP is designated
as a special economic zone which has
its own tax regime and rules on the use
of land and other natural resources and
in which the free customs zone customs
procedure is applied.

CBIP residents
A Belarusian company may obtain CBIP
resident status if it was established or
operates in the park and plans to carry
out an investment project meeting the
following criteria:
• The project involves carrying on
activities in the park in areas such
as electronics, telecommunications,
pharmaceuticals, fine chemistry,
biotechnology, machine building,
new materials, integrated logistics,
electronic commerce, big data
storage and processing, social and
cultural events or R&D

• Declared investment in the project
must be not less than USD 5 million,
or not less than USD 500,000 if the
entire sum is invested within three
years or in the case of an R&D project
Tax benefits
The CBIP tax regime remains in effect
for 50 years. The main tax benefits
granted to CBIP residents are as follows:
• Exemption from CIT on profits from
the sale of goods or services/work
produced by the resident in the
CBIP, for 10 years after the first
recognition of gross profit
• A zero tax rate on dividends paid by
CBIP residents to their founders or
shareholders/participants, for five
years starting from the first year
in which dividends are paid. CBIP
residents are also exempt from the
offshore levy on dividends paid to
persons in offshore jurisdictions
• Exemption from RET on property
located in the park, and from land tax
on land parcels within its boundaries
• Exemption from VAT and import duty
on goods (equipment, components
and spare parts, raw materials and
other materials) brought into Belarus
solely for use in investment projects
involving the construction and fittingout of CBIP facilities
• Exemption from VAT on the purchase
of services/work and property rights
from foreign companies where the
location of the buyer is taken as the
place of supply for VAT purposes
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• Full deduction of VAT charged on
purchases of goods, services/work
and property rights in Belarus (or
paid upon importation into Belarus)
for use in constructing and fitting out
CBIP facilities, regardless of amounts
of VAT charged on sales
• 5% withholding tax until 1 January
2027 on remuneration received
by foreign companies from CBIP
residents for rights to information
relating to industrial, commercial or
scientific experience, including knowhow, licences, patents, drawings,
utility models, schemes, formulas,
industrial prototypes or processes
• A reduced personal income tax rate
of 9% for employees of CBIP residents
until 1 January 2027. Compulsory
social security contributions may
be calculated based on the average
wage in Belarus rather than
employees’ actual salaries. Foreign
citizens participating in investment
projects in the CBIP are exempt
from compulsory social security
contributions on their income
There is also a stabilization clause,
effective until 1 January 2027, stating
that CBIP residents will not be affected
by adverse changes in Belarusian tax
law and will continue to be governed by
the provisions of law in effect at the date
of their registration as CBIP residents.
Other benefits and incentives
In addition to tax benefits, CBIP
residents are eligible for other benefits

and incentives regarding land use,
construction, employment, migration
rules, and currency and customs
regulation, including:

Business activity in
medium-sized and small
towns and rural areas

• The right to store and use goods in
the CBIP under the free customs
zone procedure pursuant to customs
regulations, i.e. exempt from customs
duties, taxes and special, antidumping and countervailing duties

Businesses operating in medium-sized
and small towns and rural areas are
granted a number of benefits. Mediumsized and small towns and rural areas
include any settlements other than
Belarus’s main regional centres (Brest,
Vitebsk, Gomel, Grodno, Minsk and
Mogilev) and certain large towns
(Bobruisk, Zhlobin, Lida, et al.).

• Exemption from VAT imposed by
the customs authorities on goods
placed under the release for domestic
consumption customs procedure if
they were manufactured by CBIP
residents using foreign goods
placed under the free customs zone
procedure
• Exemption from the requirements of
Belarusian currency law regarding
currency transactions
• The right to conduct foreign trade
transactions free of the restrictions
imposed by Belarusian foreign trade
law, including deadlines for completing
such transactions
• Visa-free travel to and from Belarus
for persons hired by CBIP residents
for investment projects in the park
and for founders and shareholders/
participants of CBIP residents and
their employees
• Restrictions on the conduct of
regulatory audits of CBIP residents
without approval from the CBIP
Administration

Such businesses are exempt for seven
years after their registration from CIT
and RET on assets situated in relevant
localities provided that they sell ownproduced goods and services, which
must be certified by the Belarusian
Chamber of Industry and Trade.
Besides these tax exemptions, such
businesses are also eligible for other
benefits, including exemption from
import duty on certain types of
equipment not older than five years
when brought into Belarus as a nonmonetary contribution to the capital of a
newly established entity.
Special incentives are established until
31 December 2022 for businesses
engaged in the trade, public catering
and consumer services sectors in rural
areas and small towns included in a
list determined by regional councils of
deputies. For example, for companies
that trade through retail outlets,
markets or fairs and for public catering
establishments and providers of
consumer services:
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• Analysis, design and software support
of IT systems, including development
and deployment of IT systems
or software, provision of related
implementation and support services,
and database creation
• Data processing using software
• Technical and/or cryptographic data
protection
• Development and deployment
of software technologies for the
financial sector and financial IT
• Software publishing and promotion
• Turnover from sales of goods and
services/work in a rural area is
exempt from VAT, and profit is taxed
at 6%
• Facilities used in carrying on business
in a rural area are exempt from real
estate tax, and the land parcels on
which they are situated are exempt
from land tax or from rent on stateowned land parcels
Legal entities registered in the Orsha
district and engaged in the production of
goods and services/work in that district
are entitled to a range of benefits until
31 December 2023. For example, they
may apply a reduced rate of compulsory
pension insurance contributions (24%)
and increased investment deductions
for CIT purposes (30% for buildings and
structures and 50% for machinery and
equipment). They are also exempt from
paying VAT on the importation into
Belarus of certain kinds of production
equipment and components that
are subject to zero-rate import duty.
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Residents of the Orsha district are not
subject to time limits for the completion
of export/import transactions and are
exempt from regulatory audits except in
certain cases.

The Hi-Tech Park
The Hi-Tech Park (HTP) was established
in Minsk in 2005 to promote IT in
Belarus. It offers a special legal
regime for IT firms until 2049. The
HTP Supervisory Board is in charge
of general coordination, management
and control of the HTP, while the
HTP Administration, a government
institution, oversees the day-to-day
running of the park.
HTP residents
Belarusian companies based either
within or outside the park may apply
for HTP resident status if they carry on
certain types of activity, namely:

• Online advertising and intermediary
services using software developed
with the involvement of the HTP
resident
• Development, maintenance and sale
of software and/or hardware based
on or using blockchain technology
• Operation of crypto trading platforms
and cryptocurrency exchanges,
mining, creation and offering of own
digital tokens, and other activities
involving digital tokens
• Data centre services
• Development and deployment of
unmanned vehicle systems
• Development, implementation and
deployment of Internet of Things
technologies
• Educational programs in ICT and
cybersports
• Other activities listed in the law

To join the HTP, applicants must submit
a package of documents. The key
document is the business project that
the applicant intends to implement as an
HTP resident. The decision on whether
to register an applicant as an HTP
resident is made by the HTP Supervisory
Board based on the potential
significance of the proposed business
project for the development of new and
advanced technologies.

Tax benefits
HTP residents are required to contribute
1% of their revenue to the HTP
Administration. Accordingly, they are
mostly exempt from CIT and from VAT
on sales of goods, services/work and
property rights in Belarus, except for 9%
CIT on certain interest income, income
from the sale of equity interests and
securities and dividends from sources
outside Belarus.
HTP residents are exempt from import
duties and VAT on certain kinds of
equipment imported into Belarus for
use in investment projects involving
permitted types of activity. They may
also qualify for real estate tax and land
tax benefits in relation to buildings and
land parcels within the boundaries of the
HTP.
Personal income tax for employees of
HTP residents is set at 9%. Compulsory
social security contributions are
calculated and paid based not on an
employee’s actual salary, but on the
national average wage, which is several
times less than the pay level in the
Belarusian IT industry.

HTP residents are also exempt from
the offshore levy on dividends paid to
their founders/participants registered in
offshore jurisdictions. Tax on dividends
paid by HTP residents is charged at
9% on individuals and at 5% on foreign
companies, unless they are entitled
to more favourable treatment under a
double taxation treaty.
In addition, HTP residents are exempt
from Belarusian VAT on licences
and certain services that play an
important role in the IT business, such
as advertising, marketing, consulting
and database creation services, when
acquired from foreign providers. A zero
WHT rate applies to income earned
by foreign companies from rendering
services to HTP residents, such as data
protection, web hosting, advertising
and intermediary services, as well as to
interest and royalty income.
Other benefits and incentives
HTP residents are entitled to enter into
convertible loan agreements and option
agreements, issue irrevocable powers of
attorney and take advantage of certain
legal mechanisms, such as warranties
and indemnities. For the purpose of
regulating corporate relationships,
shareholders/participants of HTP
residents are entitled to enter into
shareholders’/participants’ agreements
governed by foreign law and refer
disputes arising under such agreements

to foreign courts and arbitration
tribunals.
HTP residents are also entitled to enter
into non-competition agreements with
their employees and non-solicitation
agreements with third parties. Foreign
nationals who are hired by HTP
residents under employment contracts
or who are founders of HTP residents
or are employed by such founders are
eligible for visa-free entry into Belarus
for stays of up to 180 days in the course
of a year.
Foreigners entering into employment
contracts with HTP residents do not
require a permit to work in Belarus and
may apply for a temporary residence
permit for the duration of the contract.
HTP residents are entitled to conduct
foreign trade transactions free of
restrictions laid down in Belarusian
foreign trade legislation, including
rules on the timing and methods of
completion of such transactions.
HTP residents are entitled to use
simplified documentation procedures in
accounting for transactions with nonresidents. Capital currency transactions
which ordinarily require permission from
the NBRB may be carried out by HTP
residents subject only to a notification
requirement. Regulatory bodies are
not allowed to audit HTP residents
without the prior consent of the HTP
Administration.

For further information on Belarus’s IT industry, see EY’s report,
“The IT Industry in Belarus”, which can be found at ey.com/by/it.
Doing Business in Belarus
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Legal forms
A foreign company may operate in
Belarus through:
• A separate legal entity in Belarus, or
• A representative office of a foreign
company
The most common forms of legal
entities in Belarus are limited liability
companies, closed joint-stock companies
and unitary enterprises.
Limited liability company
A limited liability company (LLC or
“OOO” in Russian) is the most common
corporate form in Belarus. In practice,
the majority of foreign companies
starting activities in Belarus prefer to
establish an LLC.
The charter capital of an LLC is formed
from its participants’ contributions.
There is no minimum charter capital
requirement for an LLC. Contributions
may be made in cash and/or in kind (in
the form of shares in other companies,
etc.).
An LLC may have up to 50 participants.
An LLC may be founded by one person
or have one participant.
The charter of an LLC may contain
restrictions on the transfer of
participants’ rights, including, for
example, a prohibition on the full or
partial sale of equity interest to third
parties. A participant in an LLC may
not withdraw from the LLC if this would
leave the LLC with no participants,

including in the case of an LLC with a
sole participant. When a participant
withdraws, its interest passes to the
LLC, while the withdrawing participant
is paid the actual value of its equity
interest in the LLC plus a proportional
amount of the profits earned by the LLC
between the withdrawal date and the
settlement date. A sole LLC participant
is not allowed to sell its interest in the
charter capital to the LLC itself.
The governing bodies of an LLC are
the general meeting of participants,
the supervisory board (optional) and
the executive body. The supervisory
board is established by decision of, and
is accountable to, the general meeting
of participants and deals with matters
relating to the general administration
of the LLC’s activities. The individual
executive body (director) or collective
executive body (managing board) is
responsible for the day-to-day running
of the LLC.
The participants in an LLC are not
liable for the LLC’s obligations and bear
the risk of losses associated with its
activities only within the limits of their
capital contributions.
Unitary enterprise
A unitary enterprise («УП» in Russian)
is another common corporate form
in Belarus, the main difference
from an LLC being that a unitary
enterprise’s founder remains the direct
owner of its assets. However, since
26 January 2016, when rules allowing
the registration of an LLC with a single

founder came into force, the number of
unitary enterprises being registered has
fallen significantly.
The assets of a unitary enterprise are
indivisible and cannot be divided into
contributions (equity interests or units).
Assets of a unitary enterprise may be
privately owned either by an individual
(or spouses jointly) or a legal entity and
are possessed by the unitary enterprise
under a right of economic management.
Shared ownership of a unitary
enterprise’s assets is prohibited.
A unitary enterprise may sell any assets
held by it under economic management
except for immovable property
(unless the founder establishes other
restrictions in the charter). Any disposal
of immovable property (including sale,
lease, mortgage, etc.) is subject to the
founder’s prior approval.
There is currently no minimum charter
capital requirement for a unitary
enterprise. Contributions to the charter
capital may be both in cash and in kind
(shares in other companies, equipment,
etc.).
The governing body of a unitary
enterprise is the director, who must
be appointed by the owner of the
enterprise’s assets.
A unitary enterprise is liable for its
obligations to the extent of all the
assets that it holds under economic
management. It is not liable for the
obligations of the owner of its assets.
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Comparison of a limited liability company, a unitary enterprise and a closed joint-stock company
Limited liability company

Closed joint-stock company

Standard registration procedures

Standard registration procedures plus registration of Standard registration procedures
shares with the Securities Department of the Finance
Ministry

Profit may be distributed either proportionately
or disproportionately to equity interest,
if directly permitted by the charter

Profit may be distributed only in proportion to equity
interests, excluding preference shares

Profit is distributed by the owner in the
owner’s favour

Transfer of equity interest to a third party may
be restricted/prohibited by the charter

Transfer of shares in a closed joint-stock company to
third parties is only permitted with the consent of the
other shareholders

Since the enterprise is wholly owned by
one person, transfer takes place by means
of alienation of the asset portfolio

The registration procedure is not very
complicated and usually takes about two weeks

The registration procedure is more complicated
than for an LLC because of the requirement to issue
shares and register the issue

The registration procedure is the same
as for a limited liability company

Joint-stock company
A joint-stock company (JSC or “AO”
in Russian) may appear to be a more
complicated business structure. JSCs
generally fall into two categories: closed
and open. The difference between them
is that in an open JSC, shares may be
freely sold to third parties, while in a
closed JSC, share transfers are subject
to the pre-emptive rights of other
shareholders.
The minimum charter capital
requirement for incorporation is
currently:
• 100 base units (approximately
USD 1,300) for a closed JSC
• 400 base units (approximately
USD 5,200) for an open JSC
A JSC’s shares may be held by one
person. The number of shareholders
is limited to 50 for a closed JSC but is
unlimited for an open JSC.
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Joint-stock companies can issue two
types of shares: ordinary (voting)
and preference shares. The owner
of a preference share is entitled to
fixed dividends and a portion of the
company’s assets upon its liquidation
but may not vote on management
matters. The nominal value of
preference shares must not exceed
25% of the company’s charter capital.
A JSC is obliged to comply with various
disclosure requirements.
Representative offices
Foreign companies may also operate in
Belarus without creating a legal entity
by establishing a representative office.
A representative office is regarded as
an autonomous subdivision of a foreign
company that represents its interests
in Belarus, and not as a separate legal
entity.

Unitary enterprise

Representative offices of foreign
companies are not permitted to engage
in business activity. A foreign company
may open a representative office in
Belarus only to carry out preparatory
and auxiliary activities on behalf of the
foreign company, including the following
activities:
• Researching Belarusian markets
• Studying investment opportunities in
Belarus
• Establishing business entities in
Belarus in partnership with foreign
investors

Registration of companies in Belarus
Companies must be registered with
the state registration authority, which
arranges subsequent registration with
the tax authorities, the Social Security
Fund, statistical agencies, Belgosstrakh
(the Belarusian National Unitary
Insurance Enterprise), etc. During the
registration process, the state authority
may also send information to a bank
to enable the opening of a current
(settlement) account.
Representative offices must register
themselves with the tax authorities, the
Social Security Fund, statistical agencies
and Belgosstrakh after receiving the
requisite permit from the relevant
regional (or Minsk city) executive
committee.
If any documents submitted for
registration purposes do not meet the
official requirements, they may have to
be re-submitted. A newly established
company or representative office must
take additional steps to become fully
operational, such as opening bank
accounts, making a corporate seal
(optional) or registering a share issue
with the securities authorities (only
applies to JSCs).

Licensing
A special permit (licence) is required for
certain business activities. Currently,
there are 34 such activities (comprising
around 200 types of services/work). The
most important are banking operations,
the gambling industry, the manufacture
and wholesale of alcoholic beverages
and tobacco products, retail of alcoholic
beverages and tobacco products,
wholesale and retail of petroleum
products, and health care services.
Licensing authorities issue licenses
within 15 working days of receiving all
the required documents.

Mergers and acquisitions
Anti-monopoly control
Under competition law, certain
transactions (including M&A, the
creation of new entities and the
purchase and sale of shares and/or
assets) are subject to anti-monopoly
scrutiny. In this case the approval of
the anti-monopoly authorities must
be obtained before a transaction is
concluded or a new entity is registered.

Legal entity

Representative office of a foreign company

Registration time
(actual)

Around 2-3 weeks

Around 1-2 months

State duty

1 base unit
(approx. USD 13)

195 base units (approx. USD 2,535) for every
three years of activity for which the permit
to open the representative office is issued

Restrictions applicable to strategic
companies
Investments in legal entities holding
a dominant position on Belarusian
goods markets require the approval of
the anti-monopoly authorities in cases
stipulated by anti-monopoly law. The
same is true for investments in activities
prohibited by Belarusian legislation.
Investments may also be legislatively
restricted in the interests of national
security (including protection of the
environment and heritage assets), public
order, morality, public health and the
rights and liberties of individuals.

Shareholders’ agreements
Under Belarusian legislation,
shareholders of a company may
conclude shareholders’ agreements
or, if it is a limited liability company,
participants’ agreements.
Through such agreements,
shareholders/participants may agree to
exercise their rights in a certain manner
and/or refrain from exercising their
rights, including by voting in a certain
manner at the general meeting of
shareholders/ participants, coordinating
voting choices or coordinating other
actions relating to the management
of the company or the establishment,
business, re-organization or liquidation
of the company.
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There are, however, restrictions to
the effect that not all participants/
shareholders of a company may be
parties to a shareholders’ agreement at
the same time.

Tax overview
Tax policy
The President, the Parliament and
the Belarusian Finance Ministry are
responsible for determining and
developing tax policy. The Belarusian
Ministry of Taxes and Levies and its local
offices are responsible for monitoring
tax compliance.

Besides taxes and levies/duties, other
compulsory payments in Belarus include
state social security contributions
payable by employers to the Social
Security Fund of the Republic of Belarus.

National taxes and levies/duties
include:
Corporate income tax

Belarus has a two-tier tax system
comprising national taxes and levies/
duties and local taxes and levies. National
taxes and levies/duties are established by
the Tax Code of the Republic of Belarus
(“the Tax Code”) or by presidential
edicts and decrees and must be paid
throughout the country. Local taxes
and levies are established by regulatory
acts of local councils of deputies (local
government bodies) and are payable only
in the territories concerned.
The Tax Code provides special tax
regimes for taxpayers engaged in
particular activities. This means that their
taxes are calculated and paid according
to different rules from those normally
applicable and they pay a special tax
payment.

34

Doing Business in Belarus

Tax on dog owners
Resort levy
Levy on harvesters of wild-growing
food

Special tax regimes include:

Withholding tax
Personal income tax
Value added tax
Excise tax

Types of taxes and levies/duties

Local taxes and levies include:

Tax under the simplified taxation
system
Unified tax on entrepreneurs and
other individuals

Real estate tax

Unified tax for producers of
agricultural products

Land tax

Gaming tax

Environmental tax

Tax on income from lottery activities

Mineral extraction tax

Tax on income from the organization
of online interactive games

Offshore levy
Stamp duty

Levy on craft businesses

Consular fee

Levy on agritourism/ecotourism
businesses

State duty

Unified tax on imputed income

Patent fees
Customs duties and levies
Recycling levy

Tax registration
The tax registration of an organization
takes place at the same time as its
state registration or at the time of the
registration of a representative office of
a foreign company and covers all taxes
payable in Belarus.

Tax audits
Belarusian law prohibits tax audits on
newly established companies for two
years after their state registration. After
that, companies may face selective
audits scheduled by the tax authorities
according to a risk-based approach.
This means that audits are specifically
targeted at taxpayers deemed to have
a high probability of committing tax
violations, which is determined by the
tax authorities using specific criteria.
There are also certain grounds for
conducting unscheduled audits.
Information on planned selective audits
is published every six months on the
website of the State Control Committee*
no later than 15 December/15 June.
A company may be audited by one
and the same authority only once
every three years. As a rule, the period
covered by a tax audit may not exceed
five calendar years. Tax audits may
last for up to 30 working days.

Rates of main taxes
Tax

Rate

Corporate income tax (CIT)

18%

Value added tax (VAT)

20%

Withholding tax (WHT)
Dividend income

12%

Interest income

10%

Royalty income

15%

Personal income tax (PIT)

13%

Real estate tax (RET)

1%

Compulsory social security contributions

35%

Pension insurance contributions (retirement, disability and survivor benefits)

29%*

 ocial insurance contributions (temporary disability, maternity, childcare and
S
other benefits)

6%

* This includes 1% payable by the employee but withheld and remitted by the employer.

Statute of limitations for tax
collection
Taxes cannot be collected from a legal
entity if no demand was presented
within five years after their due date.
This does not apply in cases where the
law allows for an audit to cover more
than five years.

General anti-evasion rule
If the main purpose of a transaction
was to avoid paying tax or to secure
a tax refund from the budget, the
tax authorities have the right when
conducting an audit to adjust the
amount payable by the taxpayer.

* http://www.kgk.gov.by/ru/pvproverok-ru/
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Corporate income tax

Taxpayers

Object of taxation

Taxpayers. Object of taxation
and tax base

Belarusian companies

• Gross profit of a Belarusian company
•D
 ividends and similar income payable by Belarusian
companies

The payers of CIT are:
• Belarusian companies
• Foreign companies operating in
Belarus through a permanent
establishment
Belarusian companies pay tax on profit
earned both in Belarus and abroad,
while foreign companies only pay it
on profit earned through a permanent
establishment located in Belarus.
There is no tax consolidation option for
groups of companies in Belarus: each
group entity is treated as a standalone
taxpayer.
If a branch has its own balance sheet
and bank account and has control over
the use of funds in that account, the
branch is responsible for assessing and
paying the company’s taxes.
Revenue from sales of goods, services/
work and property rights is recognised
on an accrual basis (i.e. according
to the date on which a supply is
recorded rather than the date on which
payment is made), subject to special
considerations laid down in the law.

Foreign companies operating
in Belarus through a permanent
establishment

GROSS
PROFIT

=

•G
 ross profit earned by a foreign company through
a permanent establishment in Belarus

Profit from sales of
goods, services/work
and property rights

Profit from sales of
goods, services/work
and property rights

=
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Non-operating
income

Revenue from sales of
goods, services/work
and property rights

–

–

Non-operating
expenses

Deductible expenses

Permanent establishment of a foreign company
The following forms of presence in Belarus constitute a permanent establishment of
a foreign company:
Fixed place of
business

The carrying on of entrepreneurial and other activities in Belarus (other
than activities of a preparatory and auxiliary nature)

Dependent agent

A company or an individual that:
• Carries on activities on behalf of and/or in the interests of the foreign
company, or
• Has and habitually exercises authority from the foreign company to
conclude contracts or negotiate material terms of contracts

The place of supply of services/work by
a foreign company in Belarus is deemed
to be its permanent establishment if it
has operated for 180 days continuously
or in the aggregate in any 12-month
period beginning or ending in the
relevant tax period.

36

+

A construction, installation or assembly
site is also deemed to constitute
a permanent establishment of a
foreign company if the site has been in
existence in Belarus for more than
180 days in any 12-month period
beginning or ending in the relevant tax
period.

Foreign companies are required to
keep accounting records and prepare
financial statements in accordance
with Belarusian laws and regulations in
respect of activities that give rise to a
permanent establishment in Belarus and
are taxable on that basis.

• Services/work were performed for
the taxpayer by a company that
is a founder of, or participant in,
the taxpayer or vice versa, and the
services/work in question fall within
the scope of duties of an employee of
the taxpayer

Deductible expenses

Partly deductible expenses

General provisions
The list of deductible expenses is not
exhaustive. All expenses (except for
those that are non-deductible for tax
purposes or are deductible within
prescribed limits) may be fully deducted
if they are economically justified and
were incurred in connection with the
production/sale of goods, services/work
or property rights or if they are classed
as non-operating expenses.
Expenses may not be recognised as
economically justified if any of the
following conditions is met:
• Goods (intangible assets) were not
received, services/work were not
performed, or property rights were
not transferred
• Services/work were performed by
an individual entrepreneur who is at
the same time an employee of the
taxpayer, and the services/work form
part of the employment duties of the
person concerned

In practice, form often prevails over
substance in audits conducted by the
tax authorities, and expenses may
therefore be declared non-deductible if
the taxpayer fails to produce supporting
documents, such as a contract,
acceptance certificate or invoice.

The following expenses are tax-deductible within set limits:
Partly deductible expenses

Limits on deduction

• Business trip expenses

Limits set for each type of
expense

• Fuel expenses
• Losses due to shortage of and/or damage to goods and
inventory
• Expenses for management services provided by individual
entrepreneurs or entities that apply special tax regimes
• Expenses relating to controlled debt (see the “Thin
capitalization rules” section)
• Other expenses, such as:
— Certain types of payments to individuals
— Expenses incurred for social functions and parties

Deductible within a limit of
no more than 1% of sales
revenue and property rental
income, including VAT

— Fees and (or) expenses of members of the Board of Directors
— Entertainment expenses
— Payments to employees to reimburse them for the use of
their own vehicles if their work does not normally involve
travel and amounts of rent paid to such employees
— Membership fees paid to entrepreneurs’ and employers’
associations and other unions and associations
— Interest on outstanding principal amounts of loans
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Doubtful debt provisions

Investment deduction

Doubtful debt provisions are recorded
as non-operating expenses but must
amount to no more than 5% of revenue
from sales of goods, services/work,
property rights and intangible assets,
inclusive of VAT, calculated as follows:

An investment deduction is an amount
determined based on the historical
cost of fixed assets used in business
operations and the book value of
investment in their reconstruction,
upgrade or renovation.

Percentage of
debt included in
expenses

Age

> 90 calendar days

100%

45 - 90 calendar
days

50%

<45 calendar days

0%
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A taxpayer may apply the following
investment deductions, meaning the
immediate deduction for CIT purposes
of a part of the historical cost of fixed
assets and a part of the book value
of investment in their reconstruction,
upgrade or renovation:
• No more than 15% for buildings and
structures
• No more than 30% for machinery,
equipment and vehicles

The application of an investment
deduction does not affect how fixed
assets are depreciated (depreciation is
calculated based on historical cost).
Thin capitalization rules
The thin capitalization rules that came
into force in 2013 limit the deductibility
of certain types of costs/expenses
where the taxpayer has controlled debt
to a foreign or Belarusian founder/
participant.
The thin capitalization rules apply if the
taxpayer’s debt-to-equity ratio (for all
controlled debt) at the end of the tax
period is at 3:1.

Debt obligations classed as controlled debt
Debt due to a founder/
participant whose direct or
indirect equity interest in the
taxpayer is 20% or more as at
the end of the tax period

Debt due to a related party
of the founder/participant

The thin capitalization rules do not
apply to banks, insurers or lessors,
including property lessors that receive
more than 50% of their total revenue
from leasing activity.
The thin capitalization rules apply to
the following types of controlled debt:
• Debt on loans (excluding commercial
loans)

Maximum amount of
deductible expense/
interest

=

Debt due to other persons
where the related party and/or
the founder/participant acts as
a surety or guarantor for the
repayment of the controlled
debt

• Amounts payable for engineering,
marketing, consulting, management
and intermediary services,
information services and personnel
recruitment and supply services,
and consideration for the transfer of
industrial property rights
• Fines, penalty interest and other
sanctions, including damages for
contractual breaches

Amount of each item of
controlled debt in the tax
period

/

=

Controlled debt in the tax period
(total amounts due to all persons)

Tax benefits
CIT exemption applies to:
• Profit (not exceeding 10% of gross
profit) donated to (i) companies
for the construction and/or
reconstruction of sports facilities,
(ii) government-funded health
care, educational, cultural and

/

Capitalization ratio

Equity at the end of
the tax period

/

• Profit from sales of own
manufactured products that are
classed as innovative products
according to the list approved by the
Council of Ministers
• Profit from sales of own
manufactured cars and components
(provided that a relevant agreement
has been concluded with the Ministry
of Industry)
• Income from transactions involving
bonds issued by Belarusian
companies either between
1 April 2008 and 1 January 2015
or since 1 July 2015, and income
from transactions involving state
securities issued by the Ministry
of Finance and bonds issued by
the NBRB

Where the capitalization ratio is:
Capitalization
ratio

• Profit (except for profit from
wholesale, procurement or
intermediary activities) received
by companies that employ disabled
persons, if the average proportion of
disabled employees is at least 30% of
the average headcount

3

sports organizations, (iii) religious
organizations, (iv) social services
providers and (v) certain public
associations
• Profit from sales of prosthetic
and orthopaedic appliances and
rehabilitation and support equipment
for the disabled

• Other profits as determined by the
President
Taxpayers have discretion to decide
whether to use any tax benefits they
are legitimately entitled to. They are
not required to submit any supporting
documents to the tax authorities if
they decide to apply them (unless such
documents are required during a tax
audit).
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CIT rates

Dividends

Rate

Taxpayers

18%

All companies (this is the standard tax rate)

10%

Companies engaged in the production of high-tech products (on the list approved by
the Council of Ministers)
High-tech parks, technology transfer parks and residents of high-tech parks

12%

Belarusian companies when paying dividends (applicable to the amount of dividends
paid)

25%

Banks, insurers, forex companies and certain types of microfinance companies

50%

Companies engaged in the transit of crude oil and petroleum products through trunk
pipelines within the Republic of Belarus

Reduced tax rates may also apply in a number of other cases.

Dividends received by Belarusian
companies from residents or nonresidents are subject to CIT at 12%.
A reduced rate may apply if the
Belarusian company has not paid
dividends to Belarusian residents
(participants/ shareholders) for several
consecutive years.
Number of
consecutive years in
which profits were
not distributed

Reduced rate
applicable at next
dividend payment

3 years

6%

5 years

0%

Dividends distributed by Belarusian
companies are taxed at source. Tax on
income from dividends is withheld and
paid by the companies that distribute
them.
Dividends paid by a foreign company
may be taxed in the foreign jurisdiction.
The amount of tax withheld in a foreign
jurisdiction may be offset against CIT
due in Belarus (see the “Offset of taxes
paid in foreign jurisdictions” section).
Tax on income from dividends
distributed by Belarusian companies
is assessed in each month in which
dividends are distributed and must
be paid no later than the 22nd of the
following month.
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Capital gains and losses

Tax accounting

Loss carry forward

Gains derived from the sale of fixed
and intangible assets are determined
as revenue from the sale less taxes, net
book value (in the case of depreciable
assets) or acquisition cost (in the
case of non-depreciable assets, such
as construction in progress and land
parcels), and selling costs. Losses on
sales of fixed and intangible assets
reduce the tax base for CIT.

Tax accounting is based on financial
accounting with appropriate
adjustments. The tax accounting
process must be set out in the
taxpayer’s accounting policy.

Loss carry forward is a mechanism that
allows companies that have incurred a
loss in a tax period to carry it forward
entirely or partially to future tax
periods, reducing the tax base in the
future tax periods by all or part of the
amount of the loss.

Gains derived from sales of securities
(except in cases indicated in the “Tax
benefits” section) are taxed at the
standard rate. There are special rules for
calculating gains on REPO transactions.
Tax filing and payment
The tax period for CIT is the calendar
year. The reporting period for CIT is a
calendar quarter. The reporting period
for CIT on dividends distributed by
Belarusian companies is a calendar
month. The amount of CIT for a reporting
period is calculated on a cumulative
basis from the beginning of the tax
period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise
when amounts of income (expenses)
are the same for both financial and
tax accounting purposes, but they
are recognised in different reporting
periods. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities must be recorded in statutory
accounts in accordance with the Finance
Ministry’s guidelines.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
typically arise when the taxpayer:
• carries losses forward (see the
“Loss carry forward” section)
• receives gratuitous aid
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in the reporting period
in which the temporary differences
arise.

The carry forward mechanism does not
apply to losses incurred:
• As a result of activities outside
Belarus in which the Belarusian
company engaged as a foreign tax
resident, or
• In a tax period (tax periods or
part of a tax period) in which the
Belarusian company was entitled to
CIT exemption for more than one tax
period.
Losses are carried forward by type of
transaction against corresponding items
of income:
• Group 1 — transactions involving
financial instruments and securities,
including derivatives

Deadlines for filing a return and paying tax
Quarter

Losses may be carried forward for
10 years, starting with losses incurred
in 2011.

I

II

III

IV

Filing deadline
(no later than)

20 April

20 July

20 October

20 March of the
following year

Payment deadline
(no later than)

22 April

22 July

22 October

22 December*
and 22 March of the
following year**

• Group 2 — disposals of fixed assets,
construction in progress, uninstalled
equipment or an enterprise as a
portfolio of assets

* Two thirds of the amount of tax determined for Q3.
** Subsequent adjustment of tax for Q4 and payment of outstanding amount or refund of overpayment

Tax returns (except for returns for tax on dividend income) must be filed even when
there is no taxable income or assets.
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Remaining losses are then carried
forward regardless of the transaction or
activity that gave rise to them.
To apply loss carry forwards, a company
must maintain separate accounting
records and keep documents confirming
amounts of losses incurred.
Offset of taxes paid in foreign
jurisdictions
Belarusian companies are also subject
to Belarusian CIT on profits from
activities in foreign jurisdictions in which
they engage as foreign tax residents.
To avoid double taxation, tax paid by
a Belarusian company abroad may be
offset against tax due in Belarus. The
offset amount may not exceed the
amount of tax payable in Belarus.
Belarusian companies that pay tax
abroad are required to submit to the
Belarusian tax authorities a certificate
issued by the tax authorities in the
foreign jurisdiction confirming the
amount of tax paid there.
They may also be required to submit
other supporting documents prescribed
by the tax or other competent
authorities in the foreign jurisdiction
as proof that they have paid tax in that
jurisdiction.

Transfer pricing
Transfer pricing rules have been in force in Belarus since 2012.
Transactions are considered at arm’s length with no subsequent adjustments
required to the CIT base if their prices are within the market range.
Controlled transactions
Annual threshold values
(excluding VAT and excise tax)
for transactions with the same party
to be considered controlled, BYN

Transaction type

with related parties
Foreign trade
transactions

involving the sale or purchase
of strategic goods

Transactions with
Belarusian residents
Transactions involving
the sale or purchase of
immovable property or
housing bonds

with related parties that do
not assess or pay CIT/are
exempt from CIT

2,000,000

400,000

2,000,000
400,000

2,000,000

400,000

with related parties

No threshold

with payers that apply special
tax regimes

No threshold

*	The list of strategic goods is approved by Council of Ministers Resolution No. 470 of 16 June 2016. The
list includes crude oil and petroleum products, petroleum gases and other gaseous hydrocarbons, timber,
potassium chloride, iron and non-alloy steel bars, et al.

The following methods are used to
determine whether transaction prices
are at arm’s length:
• Resale price method
• Cost plus method
• Comparable profits method
• Profit split method
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For other
taxpayers

with residents of offshore
jurisdictions

• Comparable uncontrolled price method
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For large
taxpayers

To enable the checking of transfer
prices, starting from 1 January 2016
taxpayers are required to notify the tax
authorities of all transactions made in a
tax period by providing relevant details
in electronic VAT invoices (irrespective
of the value of the transactions), and
to prepare and submit transfer pricing
documentation if requested by the tax
authorities to support the arm’s length
nature of their transactions.

Type of transfer
pricing documentation
Comprehensive TP
documentation

Transactions subject
to documentation
requirements
• Foreign trade
transactions of large
taxpayers
• Foreign trade
transactions involving
strategic goods

Filing deadline
To be filed only if requested by
the tax authorities:
• Within 10 working days if
requested in the course of a
desk audit

When documentation
may be requested

Exemption from documentation
requirement

May be requested not
earlier than 1 June of
the year following the
reporting year

• No documentation requirement
for transactions for which an
advance pricing agreement has
been concluded

• Within the time limit specified
in the request, which must be
• All other types of
May be requested after
Simplified TP
not less than two working days,
controlled transactions
the end of the reporting
documentation
if requested in the course of an
year
(economic justification)
on-site audit

• No documentation requirement
for transactions made on an
exchange, except for transactions
with related parties and residents
of offshore jurisdictions

The TP documentation or economic justification must be prepared in special formats prescribed by Resolution No. 2 of the
Belarusian Tax Ministry of 3 January 2019.
Advance Pricing Agreement with the Taxes and Levies Ministry
Starting 1 January 2019, taxpayers may enter into advance pricing agreements (APAs) with the Taxes and Levies Ministry* in
relation to certain controlled transactions.
APAs free taxpayers from the need to prepare transfer pricing documentation, enable taxpayers and tax authorities to agree
in advance on the approach to determining arm’s length prices and help minimize tax risks associated with compliance with
transfer pricing requirements in relation to transactions covered by the agreement.
Purpose of the agreement

Agreeing on pricing principles for tax purposes and/or applicable methods for determining arm’s length prices

Eligibility

Large taxpayers and taxpayers that have concluded controlled transactions totalling more than BYN 2 million in the
course of a year

Agreement term

Up to three calendar years with an option to extend by up to two years

Documentation processing The Taxes and Levies Ministry has three months to process documents submitted by taxpayers (application, draft
times
agreement, etc.). This period may be extended to six months if the Ministry needs to obtain additional information from
a foreign country
Fee

State duty for the consideration of a pricing agreement application is set at 500 base units (~ USD 5,900)

Advantages

Exemption from transfer pricing documentation requirements and lower risk of additional CIT liabilities

*	An advance pricing agreement is an agreement between a taxpayer and the Taxes and Levies Ministry setting out pricing principles for taxation purposes and/or
establishing methods to be applied in determining arm’s length prices in relation to a particular transaction or group of similar transactions contemplated by the
taxpayer.
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Withholding tax
Taxpayers
This tax is payable by foreign
companies, including unincorporated
entities, that do not have a permanent
establishment in Belarus but receive
income from Belarusian sources.
Scope of taxation
The following Belarusian-source income
is taxable:
• Dividends
• Income from debt obligations of any
kind, including loans and securities
that generate interest (discount)
income
• Royalties

• Income from fines, penalty interest
or other sanctions for contractual
breaches
• Other income from sources in
Belarus covered by the exhaustive list
prescribed by law

Tax base
The tax base is usually determined as
total income. In some cases, the tax
base is calculated as income minus
relevant documented expenses (for
example, in the case of the sale of
immovable property or equity interests
in Belarusian companies).

Tax rates
Type of income

Rate

Income from loans granted to Belarus, the Government or Belarusian residents
against government guarantees; income on Belarusian state securities and income
from the sale or redemption thereof, and certain other types of income

0%

Transport, freight, demurrage or other charges paid for shipments, including
international shipments, and charges for forwarding services

6%

Income from debt obligations of any kind, including interest on loans and credits

10%

Dividends and income from the disposal of shares/equity interests in Belarusian
companies

12%

Royalties and other taxable income of foreign companies from sources in Belarus

15%

• Income from the sale of immovable
property situated in Belarus, the
sale of an enterprise as a portfolio of
assets and the sale of securities and
equity interests (units or shares) in
Belarusian companies

Double tax treaties signed by Belarus may provide more favourable tax treatment
(see Appendix 4).

• Income from consulting, accounting,
audit, marketing, legal, engineering,
intermediary, management,
advertising or educational services
and from services involving the
recruitment and supply of personnel
for activities in Belarus

Withholding tax (WHT) is calculated,
withheld and paid by legal entities
and individual entrepreneurs that pay
income to foreign companies. Individuals
may also be considered tax agents
under certain circumstances.

• Income from services involving
the installation, set-up, inspection,
maintenance, measurement or
testing of lines, mechanisms,
equipment, instruments, appliances,
structures and intangible assets in
Belarus
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Tax agents

Foreign companies may be required to
file tax returns and pay tax in Belarus
if other foreign companies receive the
following types of income from them:
• Income from the sale of immovable
property situated in Belarus

• Income from the sale of shares
and equity interests in Belarusian
companies
• Income from the rental, leasing or
licensing for use of property situated
in Belarus
• Income from the use or transfer of
the right to the use in Belarus of
literary, artistic or scientific works,
computer software and other works
covered by copyright and/or related
rights
• Income from the sale/redemption of
securities in Belarus

Liability date for WHT

Double tax treaties

Withholding tax liability arises on the
earliest of the dates of the recognition in
the tax agent’s accounts of:

To claim reliefs under a double tax
treaty, a non-resident must obtain
confirmation that it is a resident of a
foreign jurisdiction with which Belarus
has an effective double tax treaty.

• The performance of work/rendering
of services, the acquisition of
immovable property and shares
(equity interests) or liability for fines,
penalty interest or other sanctions
for contractual breaches
• Obligations to pay income in the
form of dividends, income from debt
obligations, royalties or income from
the sale/redemption of securities
(except for shares) or from the sale
of goods under agency, commission
or similar agreements
• The payment of income
The liability date for withholding tax on
income from loans is, at the tax agent’s
choice, either the date of recognition
of the obligation to pay the income or
the date of recognition of the actual
payment of income.

That confirmation may be provided as
an extract from certain international
guides or as a standard statement
in the form prescribed in the foreign
jurisdiction, or in the form prescribed
by the Belarusian Ministry of Taxes
and Levies or agreed upon with the
competent authorities of the foreign
jurisdiction, or in any convenient form.
In the latter case the confirmation must
contain the following information:
• Date of issue (or period of validity)
• Full name and registered address of
the foreign company
• Confirmation that the foreign
company was/is a tax resident of the
relevant jurisdiction in the period
concerned for the purposes of the

application of the relevant double
taxation treaty between Belarus and
that jurisdiction.
The confirmation may be submitted
to the tax authorities either directly
or through the tax agent. If the
confirmation is not provided, the tax
agent must withhold and pay tax at
the rates set by the Belarusian Tax
Code without applying any exemptions.
However, excess payments of
withholding tax may be refunded if the
foreign company submits the necessary
documents.
Beneficial owner of income
Where relief under a double tax treaty
is conditional on beneficial ownership
of income received from a Belarusian
source, a foreign company may be
requested to provide documents proving
that it is the beneficial owner.
A foreign company is considered the
beneficial owner of Belarusian-source
income for tax relief purposes if it
receives that income from business
activities, is the actual beneficiary of the
income and is free to use the income at
its own discretion. Beneficial ownership
criteria for foreign companies include
the functions they perform to receive
the income concerned, their powers
to dispose of the income and risks
assumed.
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Tax filing and payment
The tax period is the quarter in which
the tax liability date falls.
Tax returns must be filed by tax agents
no later than the 20th of the month
following the tax period. Tax must be
paid no later than the 22nd of the month
following the tax period.
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Value-added tax
Taxpayers
VAT payers in Belarus include Belarusian
and foreign companies.
Tax registration
There is no separate tax registration
for VAT purposes except for foreign
companies that provide electronic
services to individuals in Belarus (see
below).

Scope of taxation
VAT is payable on:
• Sales of goods, services/work and
property rights in Belarus, including
exchange, donation, sales of goods
by a company to its own employees,
the rental/leasing of assets and the
transfer of intellectual property rights
• The importation of goods into Belarus
Sale of goods, services/work or property
rights means transfer by one person
to another for consideration or free
of charge, irrespective of how rights
to goods, deliverables or property
rights are acquired or the form of the
transaction.

Tax base

Place of supply

Object of taxation

Tax base

Belarus is considered the place of supply
of goods if:

Sale of goods, services/work and
property rights

The tax base is determined based on prices/tariffs and (in the
case of excisable goods) excise tax, net of VAT

Importation of goods from nonEAEU countries

The tax base includes the customs value of the goods,
customs duty and (in the case of excisable goods) excise tax

• The goods are in Belarus and are
not dispatched or transported to the
buyer

Importation of goods from EAEU
countries

The tax base is determined as the cost of the goods (i.e. the
price payable to the supplier) and (in the case of excisable
goods) excise tax

• The goods are in Belarus at the time
of dispatch or transportation to the
buyer

Exempt items
VAT-exempt items include:
• Insurance services and banking
transactions
• Rights to inventions, utility
models, design solutions, selective
breeding results, integrated circuit
topographies and trade secrets
(know-how)
• Goods and services/work produced
by companies in which disabled
employees account for at least of
30% of the headcount
• Medicines and medical equipment
on the list approved by the President
if the items concerned have been
included in state registers or have
permits issued by the Ministry of
Health
• Medical and veterinary services
• Goods produced by a tax resident
vendor under a contract of sale with

a tax resident lessor which buys
the goods for subsequent transfer
abroad under an international leasepurchase agreement
The following are exempt from VAT
when imported into Belarus:
• Goods received as foreign aid or
international technical assistance
according to the rules prescribed by
the President
• Medicines, medical devices and
materials for the production thereof
according to the list approved by the
President if the items concerned have
been included in state registers or
have permits issued by the Ministry
of Health
• Equipment, devices, materials and
components for R&D purposes which
are imported by Belarusian residents
according to the rules prescribed by
the President

Belarus is considered the place of supply
of services/work or property rights if:
• The services/work are directly related
to immovable property (including
construction in progress) situated in
Belarus (except for aircraft, marine
and inland vessels and spacecraft).
This rule also applies to the rental
and leasing of immovable property,
property valuation services and
engineering, design, and designer
and technical supervision services
directly related to such immovable
property
• The services/work are related to
movable property situated in Belarus,
with the exception of the rental
and leasing of movable property,
including vehicles
• The services are actually provided
in Belarus in the areas of culture,
art, education (excluding remote
services), sports, tourism and leisure
• The buyer of services/work or
intellectual property rights operates
in Belarus and/or is a Belarusian
resident
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The latter rule applies to intellectual
property rights; audit, consulting,
marketing, legal, accounting,
engineering, advertising and design
services; information collection and
processing services; services involving
the rental/leasing of movable property,
excluding vehicles; HR services
involving the supply and recruitment of
personnel to work at the buyer’s place
of business; database development and
access support; software development,
modification, testing and technical
support; search for, and/or provision
of, consumer data; and certain other
services.
In all other cases, Belarus is considered
the place of supply of services/work or
property rights (other than intellectual
property rights) if the seller operates
and/or is situated in Belarus.

VAT calculation and deductions

Deductible VAT amounts include:

VAT is assessed on all transactions
involving the sale of goods, services/
work or property rights for which the
time of supply falls in the relevant
reporting period. The amount of VAT
payable is determined as the tax base
multiplied by the tax rate. The total
amount payable may be reduced by
deductible VAT amounts.

• VAT charged by sellers that are
Belarusian tax residents and
taxpayers on purchases of goods,
services/work and property rights in
Belarus

Tax rates
The standard VAT rate applied to most goods, services and property rights sold in Belarus and
imported goods is 20%. Other rates are provided in the table below.
Scope of taxation
• Exportation of goods

Rate
0%

• Exportation of transportation services
• Exportation of toll manufacturing services
• Sale of Belarusian-made agricultural produce, and importation
and/or sale of agricultural produce made in other EAEU countries

10%

• Importation and/or sale of food products and children’s goods on the list
approved by the President
• Sale of telecommunication services
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25%

• VAT paid on imports of goods into
Belarus
• VAT paid on purchases of goods,
services/work and property rights in
Belarus from foreign companies that
do not carry on activities through a
permanent establishment and are
not tax-registered in Belarus on that
basis

Time of supply
The time of supply of goods, services/work or property rights is usually determined
as the day of the reporting period on which they were shipped/performed/
transferred, irrespective of when payment was made for them.
Goods

The day of the shipment of goods is:
• The day on which they are released to the buyer (recipient or carrier),
unless the seller delivers/transports the goods or pays the cost of
delivering/transporting them
• A day determined in accordance with the taxpayer’s accounting policies, but
not later than the date on which transportation begins, in other cases

Services/work

Property rights

The day of the performance of services/work is the date on which the
completed services/work are supplied in accordance with supporting
documents (acceptance certificates or other similar documents). There are
special rules for construction work, rental services, services whose results
can be used while the services are being provided, and certain other types of
services
The date of transfer of property rights is, at the taxpayer’s choice:
• The last calendar day of each month in respect of which the property right
is transferred, or
• The day of the transfer of the property rights as stated in a source
document

The following VAT amounts are not
deductible:
• VAT taken to expenses for CIT
purposes, since such amounts relate
to VAT-exempt transactions
• VAT included in the cost of goods,
services/work and property rights
• VAT not recognised in accounts or
a purchase ledger (if the taxpayer
keeps such a ledger)

• VAT on goods in the event of their
damage or loss, excluding force
majeure situations
• Certain other cases
As a rule, the deduction of VAT is limited
to the amount assessed on sales. In
certain cases, prescribed by the Tax
Code and the President, VAT is fully
deductible irrespective of the amount
assessed on sales.

VAT on purchases from foreign
companies
Where goods, services/work or
property rights are supplied by foreign
companies that do not have a permanent
establishment in Belarus and are not
tax-registered in Belarus on that basis,
VAT must be assessed and paid by the
Belarusian companies and entrepreneurs
that purchase the goods, services/work
or property rights.
VAT paid by Belarusian companies and
individual entrepreneurs in Belarus (if
they are VAT payers) may be reclaimed
in the normal manner.
Electronic VAT invoices
An electronic VAT invoice is an electronic
document that must be submitted by
all VAT payers and serves as a basis for
applying VAT deductions. Electronic VAT
invoices are created, issued, received,
signed and stored via the Electronic
VAT Invoice Portal maintained by the
Belarusian Ministry of Taxes and Levies.
Electronic VAT invoices are signed by
taxpayers with a digital signature.
Electronic invoices provide information
to the tax authorities on assessed and
deductible amounts of VAT. Taxpayers
are required to issue an electronic VAT
invoice for each transaction involving
the sale of goods, services/work or
property rights and either send the
invoice to the purchaser or, in certain
cases, upload it to the Portal. As a rule,
electronic VAT invoices must be issued
no later than the 10th of the month
following the month in which goods,
services/work or property rights were
supplied.
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Tax filing and payment
The tax period for VAT is a calendar
year. VAT payers must submit VAT
returns monthly or quarterly (at their
choice) on a cumulative basis no later
than the 20th of the month following the
reporting period.
VAT must be paid no later than the 22nd
of the month following the reporting
period.
Imports from non-EAEU countries
VAT on goods imported to Belarus from
non-EAEU countries is charged by the
customs authorities. The procedure and
time limits for payment are laid down in
customs law.
Imports from other EAEU countries
In trade between EAEU member
countries, VAT is levied according to the
destination principle, whereby exports
are zero VAT rated while imports are
taxed at standard rates. This means that
Belarusian companies export goods
to other EAEU member countries free
of VAT (provided that they submit
documentary evidence that the goods
have been removed from Belarus) and
pay VAT on imports from other EAEU
countries. In this case, VAT is charged
by the tax authorities and must be paid
no later than the 20th of the month
following the accounting recognition of
the imported goods.
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VAT on work and services is collected
in the EAEU member country that is
considered the place of supply under
EAEU law. The tax base, VAT rates,
reliefs and collection procedures are
determined in accordance with local law.

• The IP address of the device used
to buy the services is a Belarusian
address

VAT on electronic services provided by
foreign companies

Real estate tax

Foreign companies that provide
electronic services to individuals
(including individual entrepreneurs)
in Belarus or act as intermediaries
and receive payments directly from
such individuals for electronic services
provided to them are required to register
as tax residents in Belarus, pay VAT at
20% and file quarterly VAT returns.
Electronic services are services provided
using information technologies via the
Internet. They include:
• The online transfer of rights to use
software, databases, e-books, visual
images and musical and audio-visual
works
• Online advertising services
• Access to Internet search engines
• Online gaming
Individuals are deemed to acquire
electronic services in Belarus if one of
the following conditions is met:
• Belarus is where the individuals are
actually located
• Belarus is where the bank or
electronic money operator through
which payment is made for services is
actually located

• The country code of the telephone
number used to buy the services is
the code for Belarus

Taxpayers
Companies may be liable to pay real
estate tax.
Scope of taxation
RET is charged on:
• Buildings, structures or parts thereof
that are owned by the taxpayer or
are under the taxpayer’s economic or
operational management
• Buildings, structures or parts thereof
that are situated in Belarus and were
acquired from a Belarusian company
under a finance lease if the lessor
no longer records the facilities on its
balance sheet
• Buildings, structures or parts thereof
that are situated in Belarus and have
been rented or acquired for use for
consideration or free of charge from
foreign companies that do not have a
permanent establishment in Belarus
or from individuals
• Buildings, structures or parts thereof
in other cases

Tax base
The tax base is determined by taxpayers
based on buildings, structures and
parts thereof in their possession as
at 1 January.

Scope of taxation
Buildings, structures or parts thereof recognised in accounts as
fixed assets or income-bearing investments in tangible assets

Net book value

Other buildings, structures or parts thereof

Book value

Tax reliefs

Tax rates

The following are exempt from RET:

The rate of RET for companies is 1%.

• Buildings and structures designated
as heritage assets according to
the list approved by the Council of
Ministers

Buildings, structures or parts thereof
completed after 1 January 2019 are
exempt from RET in the first year after
their commissioning date and are
subsequently taxed at 0.2%, 0.4%, 0.6%
and 0.8% in the second, third, fourth and
fifth year respectively.

• Buildings and structures that are
used or designated for use by
organizations for agriculture
• Buildings and structures designated
for environmental protection and
enhancement purposes according to
the list approved by the President
• Newly commissioned buildings and
structures, for one year after their
commissioning date
• Buildings and structures that have
been mothballed in the manner
prescribed by the Council of Ministers
• Other assets specified by law

Tax base

Local government bodies (regional
councils and the Minsk city council) have
the right to raise or reduce RET rates
for certain categories of taxpayers for
2020 and beyond by a factor of no more
than 2.
Tax filing and payment
The tax period is the calendar year.
RET returns must be submitted to the
tax authorities no later than 20 March
of the reporting year. Companies may
opt to pay the entire amount for the
year by 22 March of the reporting year
or pay quarterly instalments no later
than the 22nd of the third month of
each quarter.

Other taxes
Land tax
Legal entities that possess land under a
permanent or temporary right of use or
under private ownership are liable to pay
land tax.
The tax base for land tax is determined
based on the cadastral value, area and
designated use of a land parcel.
Local government bodies (regional
councils and the Minsk city council) have
the right to raise or reduce land tax rates
for certain categories of taxpayers for
2020 and beyond by a factor of no more
than 2.
The tax period for land tax is a calendar
year. Tax returns must be submitted no
later than 20 February of the current
year. Tax must be paid either once a
year by 22 February of the current year
or in quarterly instalments no later than
the 22nd of the second month of each
quarter.
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Environmental tax
Companies may be liable to pay
environmental tax, the tax base for
which is determined as the actual
volume/weight of:
• Emissions of air pollutants
• Wastewater discharge
• Industrial waste that must be stored
or buried
• Crude oil and/or petroleum products
conveyed in transit through the
Republic of Belarus by trunk pipelines
The Tax Code sets different rates of
environmental tax for each type of
pollutant. In certain cases, reduction
factors are applied to the environmental
tax rates.
The tax period for the environmental
tax is a calendar quarter. Tax returns
must be submitted no later than the
20th of the month following the end of
a quarter. Tax must normally be paid by
the 22nd of the month following the end
of a quarter.
Offshore levy
Belarusian companies are liable to pay
the offshore levy on the following:
• The transfer of funds to a person
registered in an offshore jurisdiction,
or to another person in connection
with an obligation to a resident of an
offshore jurisdiction, or to an account
held in an offshore jurisdiction
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• The fulfilment of an obligation in nonmonetary form to a person registered
in an offshore jurisdiction, except in
return for consideration paid by the
resident of the offshore jurisdiction to
the Belarusian entity’s account

Excise tax

• The transfer of property rights and/
or obligations in connection with
the substitution of the parties in an
obligation where the parties are the
levy payer and an offshore entity

Excise tax is payable on:

The list of offshore jurisdictions includes
the British Virgin Islands, Gibraltar,
Liechtenstein, the US state of Delaware,
and others.
The levy is payable at a fixed rate
of 15%. The tax period is a calendar
month. The offshore levy must be paid
either before money is transferred or no
later than the day after the fulfilment
of a non-monetary obligation or the
substitution of parties to an obligation
takes place. Tax returns must be filed
no later than the 20th of the month
following the reporting period.
The Tax Code establishes certain
offshore levy reliefs. For example, it is
not charged on loan repayments and
interest charges paid by Belarusian
entities to offshore residents.

Companies may be subject to excise
tax on various transactions involving
excisable goods, such as alcoholic
products, tobacco products, motor fuel,
etc.
• Excisable goods produced and sold by
taxpayers in Belarus
• Excisable goods being imported into
Belarus
• Excisable goods imported into
Belarus when they are sold
• Gas sold in Belarus as a motor fuel
• Certain excisable goods used (sold
or transferred) other than for their
designated purpose
The Tax Code sets excise tax rates
as a fixed amount per physical unit
of a product (specific rates) or as a
percentage of their value (ad valorem
rates).
The tax period is a calendar month.
Tax returns must be filed no later than
the 20th of the month following the
reporting month and tax must be paid
no later than the 22nd of the month
following the reporting month. Special
filing and payment deadlines are
prescribed for excisable imports.

Special taxation regimes

Other special tax regimes

Simplified taxation system
The simplified taxation system is available for companies that simultaneously meet
headcount and annual gross revenue criteria. Simplified tax generally replaces CIT
and may replace VAT. The tax base is determined as the amount of gross revenue,
including revenue from sales of goods, services/work, property rights and nonoperating income.
Simplified taxation
system

Tax rate

Average
headcount

Gross revenue

Simplified taxation
system with
payment of VAT

3%

No more
than 100

No more than BYN 2,046,668
(approx. USD 970,000)

Simplified taxation
system without
payment of VAT

5%

No more
than 50

No more than BYN 1,404,286
(approx. USD 665,000)

Unified tax for agricultural producers

Gaming tax

Companies may apply the unified tax if
their revenue from sales of their own
agricultural products accounted for at
least 50% of their total revenue for the
preceding calendar year. The tax may
also be applied in relation to branches
that produce agricultural products
and have separate balance sheets and
bank accounts, provided that sales of
agricultural products produced by those
branches account for at least 50% of
their revenue. The tax rate is 1% of gross
revenue. The unified tax replaces CIT,
real estate tax and land tax.

Gaming tax is levied on gaming tables,
slot machines, betting pools (totalizators
and bookmakers) and gaming yield
(a positive difference between bets
accepted and winnings paid/bets
returned). Fixed rates of gaming tax are
set for each taxable item. Compulsory
registration requirements apply for each
type of taxable item (other than gaming
yield). Income received by taxpayers
from gaming activities is not subject to
CIT or VAT.

The Tax Code provides for the following
special tax regimes in addition to those
mentioned above: tax on income from
the organization of electronic interactive
games, tax on income from lottery
activities, the unified tax on individual
entrepreneurs and other individuals,
the levy on craft businesses, the levy on
agritourism/ecotourism businesses and
the unified tax on imputed income.
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Customs regulation
Overview
Customs regulation in Belarus is based
on international standards. Belarus
is a member of the World Customs
Organization, the International
Convention on the Harmonized
Commodity Description and Coding
System (Brussels, 1983), the
Convention on Temporary Import
(Istanbul, 1990) and the International
Convention on the Simplification and
Harmonization of Customs Procedures
(Kyoto Convention, Kyoto, 1973).
Belarus is expected to join the World
Trade Organization (hereinafter, the
“WTO”). It is also a member of the
Eurasian Economic Union (EAEU).
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The EAEU Customs Code
The agreement on the establishment
of the EAEU took effect on 1 January
2015. The EAEU member countries
are Armenia, Belarus, Kazakhstan,
Kyrgyzstan and Russia.
The EAEU Customs Code came into
force on 1 January 2018, incorporating
key elements of customs regulation
previously contained in the Customs
Union’s Customs Code. In particular,
goods produced or released for
domestic consumption in an EAEU
member country may be freely moved
within the EAEU exempt from customs
duties and without any customs
clearance formalities or other economic
restrictions. Such goods are not placed
under any customs procedure.

In addition, the new Code provides for
the introduction of mandatory electronic
customs declarations in place of written
declarations (which are now only used
in exceptional cases) and the automatic
registration of customs declarations.
Import duty
Most imported goods are subject to
import duty and VAT. Certain categories
of goods, such as alcohol, tobacco and
petrol, are also subject to excise taxes
(see the “Other taxes” section above).
Customs duty rates vary from 0% to 80%
of the customs value of the goods. The
standard VAT rate is 20%. It is charged
on the sum of the customs value,
customs duty and, where applicable,

excise tax. VAT paid on the importation
of goods or services is usually offset
against output VAT.
A zero import duty rate currently
applies to books, some medicines,
innovative equipment and a number of
other goods. Humanitarian aid, goods
imported for the management of natural
or manmade disasters and goods
imported by diplomatic missions are
exempt from customs duty.
Export duty
Certain categories of goods, including
crude oil and petroleum products, are
subject to export duty.
Customs value
Belarus’s customs valuation rules are in
line with WTO principles. The customs
value of imported goods is usually
determined as the invoice value of the
goods plus certain import-related costs
that are not included in the transaction
price. These additional costs typically
include the cost of delivery of the goods
to the border (e.g., transportation and
insurance costs), royalties and other
payments for the use of intellectual
property, the cost of materials provided
free of charge by the purchaser to the
seller, etc. This method of determining
the customs value of imported goods is
known as the transaction value method.

Normally, the customs value is
determined based on CIP delivery
terms (Incoterms 2010 - Carriage
and Insurance Paid To). If the customs
value cannot be determined using
the transaction value method, other
methods may be applied: transaction
value of identical or similar goods
method, deductive value method,
computed value method, or fall-back
method.

Release for domestic consumption
The release for domestic consumption
customs procedure is used when goods
are imported into the customs territory
of the EAEU without the intention to reexport them. This is the most frequently
used and most straightforward
procedure. Under this procedure, once
customs duty, import VAT and customs
clearance fees have been paid, goods
are in free circulation in the customs
territory of the EAEU.

Commodity coding
Belarus currently uses the Unified
Customs Nomenclature of the Eurasian
Economic Union, which is based on the
Harmonized Commodity Description and
Coding System. In theory, the first six
digits of the commodity code should be
identical in Belarus and in the EU, but
they may differ in practice. The customs
authorities can issue binding decisions
on the classification of goods.
Customs procedures
Any conveyance of goods, including
vehicles, across the Belarusian border
is subject to customs procedures
prescribed by EAEU legislation. Different
customs procedures have different
clearance requirements, which has a
significant bearing on tariff and nontariff barriers for import and export
transactions. Below is a summary of the
main customs procedures.

Customs warehouse
When imported goods are placed under
the customs warehouse procedure, they
are kept in a special customs warehouse
under the supervision of the customs
authorities. The goods are stored under
the terms of the procedure until they are
sold to end buyers, used in the customs
territory of the EAEU or re-exported out
of the EAEU. The payment of customs
duty and import VAT is postponed until
the goods are sold to end buyers in
the customs territory of the EAEU and
removed from the customs warehouse.
Goods kept in a customs warehouse
must remain unchanged, i.e., they
cannot undergo any manufacturing
or assembly operations or operations
that would alter the state of the goods.
Owners may transfer ownership
or possession of some or all goods
placed under the customs warehouse
procedure.
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Goods may be stored in a customs
warehouse for no more than three
years. They must be placed under
another customs procedure before that
period expires. If the goods are released
for domestic consumption, customs
duty and VAT must be paid. No customs
duty or VAT is due if the goods are reexported out of the EAEU.
Free warehouse
In contrast to the customs warehouse
procedure, the free warehouse customs
procedure allows goods placed under
that procedure to be processed or used
in manufacturing new products.
Owners may likewise transfer ownership
or possession of goods placed under the
free warehouse procedure and products
made from those goods.
Foreign goods are stored and used at
free warehouses exempt from customs
duty, taxes or special, anti-dumping
or countervailing duties but subject to
limitations imposed on foreign goods
under this customs procedure.
Temporary importation (admission)
Temporary importation (admission) is
a customs procedure whereby goods
may be temporarily used in the customs
territory of the EAEU either partially
or fully exempt from customs duty and
VAT.
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The period of temporary importation
may not exceed two years (or
34 months in the case of leased
fixed assets).
Full exemption from customs duty and
taxes is granted in limited cases for
goods not intended for commercial
sale. Typical examples of temporary
importation with full exemption are
when goods are imported for display
in an exhibition or for testing in the
customs territory of the EAEU.
Partial exemption is granted in other
cases where goods are expected to
remain in the customs territory of the
EAEU for a limited period of time before
being re-exported. In this case the
importer must make monthly customs
payments equal to 3% of the total
amount that would have been payable
if the goods had been released for
domestic consumption. These amounts
are not refunded if the goods are reexported.
Once the temporary importation
period has expired, goods are either
re-exported out of the EAEU or
released for domestic consumption in
the customs territory of the EAEU. If
the goods are released for domestic
consumption, accrued customs duty and
penalty interest must be paid.
This customs procedure is widely used
in practice, particularly when importing
equipment under lease arrangements
and in connection with construction
projects.

Customs processing procedures
There are three processing procedures:
• Inward processing. This procedure
is used by companies that process
goods in the customs territory of the
EAEU. Subject to certain conditions,
goods may be imported into the
customs territory of the EAEU for
processing without customs duty or
VAT being paid. Finished products
obtained as a result of processing
the goods must be exported. If the
finished products are released for
domestic consumption in the customs
territory of the EAEU, customs duty
and VAT are charged based on the
value of the original materials, and
penalty interest is payable.
• Processing for domestic
consumption. Under this procedure,
customs duty is payable only after
finished products are released for
domestic consumption in the customs
territory of the EAEU. Customs duty
is determined based on the customs
value of the finished products.
Materials imported for processing
are exempt from customs duty but
are subject to VAT. This procedure
applies only to certain types of goods
as determined by legislation.
• Outward processing. Under the
outward processing procedure, EAEU
goods may be temporarily exported
for processing and the finished
products may then be re-imported
into the customs territory of the
EAEU. In this case, customs duty
and VAT are charged only on the

added value obtained as a result of
processing the goods rather than on
the value of the imported goods. A
bank guarantee may be required for
the payment of customs duty and
taxes in case of non-compliance.
This procedure is convenient when
exporting goods for repair outside
the customs territory of the EAEU.
CIS free trade regime
Under the free trade regime currently
in force in the CIS, the importation of
goods originating from the CIS countries
into Belarus is exempt from customs
duty. To qualify for this benefit, goods
must be imported from another CIS
country under an agreement between
two CIS residents. VAT and excise taxes
are still charged.

Eight CIS countries (Armenia, Belarus,
Kazakhstan, Kyrgyzstan, Moldova,
Russia, Tajikistan and Ukraine) signed
the Free Trade Zone Treaty in
St. Petersburg on 18 October 2011.
The treaty took effect on
20 September 2012. Uzbekistan
acceded to the treaty under a protocol
signed on 31 May 2013.
In addition to abolishing import and
export duties, the Free Trade Zone
Treaty includes commitments by its
parties to ensure the non-discriminatory
application of non-tariff regulations and
grant national treatment.
The document also provides for the
abolition of quantitative restrictions
in mutual trade, grants the parties
equal rights to participation in public
procurement processes, establishes

freedom of transit and allows the
application of special safeguard
measures in mutual trade. It regulates
issues such as subsidies, technical
barriers to trade, sanitary measures
and the introduction of restrictions to
protect the balance of payments.
The Free Trade Zone Treaty replaced
bilateral and multilateral free trade
agreements between CIS countries.
One important difference between the
treaty and CIS agreements is that the
treaty contains a mechanism to compel
parties in breach of agreements to
fulfil their obligations. This is achieved
through dispute resolution rules
contained in an appendix to the treaty.

Financial reporting
and auditing
According to the general provisions
of Belarusian accounting legislation,
including Law No. 57-Z ”On Accounting
and Reporting” of 12 July 2013,
the main purpose of accounting is
to provide complete and accurate
information about a company’s
operations and its assets and liabilities.
The Law ”On Accounting and
Reporting” applies to Belarusian legal
entities and branches, representative
offices and other subdivisions thereof
that have their own balance sheet, and
to representative offices of foreign and
international organizations, business
groups, holding companies and simple
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partnerships (parties to a joint venture
agreement). Belarusian representative
offices of foreign companies are
required to adopt accounting policies
based on the accounting and reporting
principles laid down in the Law.
The Law does not, however, extend to
entities that apply the simplified tax
regime.
The new Chart of Accounts and
instructions on its application took
effect on 1 January 2012 together with
a range of other regulatory documents
based on International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS). This
provides a framework for the gradual
transition to new accounting methods
and the convergence of Belarusian and
IFRS accounting systems.
Key principles
Accounting and reporting concepts
and principles recognised in Belarus
include going concern, business entity,
accrual, matching, accuracy, substance
over form, prudence, neutrality,
completeness, understandability,
comparability and relevance.
However, the way in which these
principles are applied in Belarus
often depends on regulatory factors.
In practice, form sometimes takes
precedence over substance, as in the
case of supporting documents for
transactions, for which Belarusian
legislation prescribes very specific
forms.
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The going concern assumption has
important implications for Belarus’s
developing market, as some companies
may find that their financial position at a
given point in time makes it difficult for
them to carry on doing business.
Accounting methods
Belarusian companies are required to
keep accounting records in accordance
with their accounting policies, which
must be signed by a company’s chief
accountant and chief executive or by
an accounting services provider and
approved by the chief executive. The
policies must set out the accounting
principles and rules that the company
will follow throughout the year, including
types of accounting estimates, the
structure of the chart of accounts,
templates of source documents, ledger
forms and procedures for stock-taking of
assets and liabilities.
Effective from 1 January 2013,
companies use only the accrual method
to account for revenue from sales of
goods and services/work, meaning that
revenue is recognised in the reporting
period in which the relevant transaction
actually occurred, regardless of when
payment is received.
Foreign currency transactions
Accounting entries must be made and
financial statements must be prepared
in Belarusian roubles.

For accounting purposes, foreign
currency-denominated cash, financial
investments (except for financial
investments in the capital of another
company), receivables and liabilities
(except for advances received and
issued, prepayments and deposits) must
be translated into Belarusian roubles at
the exchange rate set by the NBRB as at
the date of the transaction and as at the
reporting date.
The NBRB sets the exchange rates of
the Belarusian rouble against major
foreign currencies based on the results
of trading sessions on the Belarusian
Currency and Stock Exchange.
Fixed assets
Fixed assets are recognised at historical
cost or a revalued amount and are
depreciated using one of the following
methods:
• The linear method
• The non-linear method (calculated
using the sum-of-years digits
methods or the reverse sum-ofyears digits method or the declining
balance method with an acceleration
factor of from 1 to 2.5)
• The production method
A company has discretion in its choice
of depreciation method but must specify
its choice in its accounting policies.
The most commonly used depreciation
method is the linear method. The useful
life of a fixed asset is determined on the

day of its acquisition and is often based
on the period for which it is expected to
be used. This can be adjusted to reflect
changes in the condition of the asset.
Companies may determine the useful
life of fixed assets themselves subject to
statutory thresholds.
The need to revalue fixed assets,
construction in progress or uninstalled
equipment (which are considered noncurrent assets) is determined based on
an index published by the Belarusian
National Statistical Committee. If the
index reaches the level of 100% or more,
revaluation is carried out:
• In relation to buildings, structures
and transmitters – by all
organizations
• In relation to other fixed assets,
construction in progress and
uninstalled equipment – by decision
of the organization or the owner of
its assets
The revaluation of fixed assets takes
place as at 1 January of the year
following the reporting year and covers
the period from the date of the previous
revaluation until 31 December of the
reporting year. It must be carried
out using one of the following three
acceptable methods:
• The direct valuation method
• The indexation method
• Adjustment of foreign currency value
Similar items of fixed assets cannot be
revalued more than once a year.
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The following are not revalued:
• Land and other natural resource
sites, housing, library stocks, movie
stocks, heritage and cultural assets,
theatrical equipment and supplies,
leased property and residential
premises in apartment buildings
• Property located in areas
contaminated by the Chernobyl
nuclear accident
• Assets of consumers’ cooperatives
involved in the construction and/
or operation of parking lots and
individual garages; assets of
housing cooperatives and other
developers, owners’ associations and
dacha and gardening associations
(cooperatives)
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• Assets designated for disposal from
the date the decision to dispose
of them was made until the date
they are actually disposed of or the
decision is revoked
• Construction in progress, except
for installed equipment and readyto-use equipment forming part of
construction in progress
Where the law allows, companies may
decide to revalue:
• All assets
• Fixed assets and income-bearing
investments in tangible assets
falling within a particular group or
subgroup or a particular fixed asset
classification code

• Individual fixed assets and incomebearing investments in tangible
assets
• Equipment for installation,
installed equipment and readyto-use equipment forming part of
construction in progress, which will
be recorded as separate inventory
items of fixed assets or incomebearing investments in tangible
assets and assigned to a particular
group, subgroup or fixed asset
classification code

Inventory

• Cash flow statement

Inventory is recorded at actual cost.

• Notes to the financial statements as
required by Belarusian law

When inventory is released to
manufacturing or otherwise disposed
of, it is valued using one of the following
methods:
• Average cost
• First in, first out (FIFO)
• Cost per unit
A company must apply one method in
relation to a group/type of inventory
throughout the reporting year. That
method must be specified in the
company’s accounting policies.

Monthly financial statements of business
entities consist of the balance sheet.
The format for the presentation of
financial statements is prescribed by the
Finance Ministry. Financial statements
are prepared in Belarusian and/or
Russian. The reporting currency is
the national currency of Belarus — the
Belarusian rouble.
Financial reporting requirements

The first method is the most frequently
used. The actual cost of inventory items
comprises the cost of acquiring them,
including customs duties and other
charges, and actual costs incurred by
the company to deliver them and make
them ready for use.

The reporting year for all companies
(except those being newly established,
re-organized or wound up) is the
calendar year from 1 January to 31
December. For newly established
companies it is the period from the date
of their registration to 31 December of
the same year.

Disclosure requirements

A company must submit annual financial
statements no later than 31 March of
the year following the reporting year to:

Companies must prepare annual
financial statements and, where
required by Belarusian legislation,
interim (quarterly or monthly)
statements.
Annual and interim (except for monthly)
financial statements of business entities
must include:
• Balance sheet
• Income statement
• Statement of changes in equity

• Owners of the company’s assets
• State bodies and companies with a
controlling stake in the company
• Other entities as required by
Belarusian law
As from 2014 companies are also
obliged to submit annual financial
statements prepared in accordance
with Belarusian law to their local tax
authorities by the above date.

Annual financial statements are subject
to review and approval in the manner
prescribed by the company’s foundation
documents.
Under NBRB Directive No. 185 of
27 September 2007, Belarusian banks
must prepare IFRS-based financial
statements as well as Belarusian
statutory statements for the year
2008 onwards. The NBRB uses IFRS
financial statements to gain a thorough
understanding of financial and nonfinancial risk management, ownership
structure, related-party transactions and
other aspects of banks’ activities.
Public interest entities (open joint
stock companies that are founders of
unitary enterprises and/or parents of
subsidiary companies, banks and nonbank financial institutions and insurance
companies) are required to prepare
IFRS-based annual consolidated financial
statements in the national currency for
the year 2016 onwards. The annual
financial statements of such entities
must be submitted together with an
auditor’s report to the Finance Ministry
(or the NBRB in the case of banks) by 30
June of the year following the reporting
year and published on the entity’s
website by 31 July of the year following
the reporting year.
On 19 August 2016 the NBRB issued
Directive No. 657/20 introducing with
effect from 1 January 2017 a technical
regulatory framework comprising 42
IFRS standards and 26 Interpretations
issued by the International Financial
Reporting Standards Foundation. This
means that many Belarusian companies
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are now required by law to apply IFRS,
which should help to increase the
transparency of the corporate sector for
investors and lenders.
The following are required to make their
annual financial statements available to
the public:

• Exchanges
• Insurance companies and insurance
brokers
• High-Tech Park residents
• Institutions that make deposit
insurance indemnity payments

• Banks and non-bank financial
institutions

• Professional participants in the
securities market

• Insurance and reinsurance companies
and insurance brokers

• Joint-stock investment funds

• Open joint stock companies

• Management companies of
investment funds

• Issuers of securities

• Special financial organizations

All companies registered with the
Belarusian Currency and Stock
Exchange must submit quarterly
financial statements (balance sheet,
income statement, etc.) and additional
information to the Ministry of Finance
within 30 calendar days after the end of
a quarter. They must also submit annual
financial statements within 30 calendar
days after the end of the financial year.

• Other legal entities whose revenue
from sales of goods and services/
work in the last reporting year
exceeded 500,000 base units (as
at 31 December of the preceding
reporting year)

Audit requirements
The following entities are required to
have their financial statements audited:
• Joint-stock companies that are
required by Belarusian law to publish
an annual report
• The National Bank of the Republic of
Belarus
• Banks, banking groups and bank
holding companies

62

Doing Business in Belarus

IFRS annual financial statements are
subject to compulsory audit where
the preparation of such statements is
required by Belarusian law.
The entities listed above, except for
the NBRB, banks, banking groups
and holding companies, joint-stock
investment funds and management
companies of investment companies,
are not required to undergo an audit
of their Belarusian statutory annual
consolidated financial statements if a
compulsory audit has been carried out
of their IFRS statements for the period
concerned.

Differences between IFRS and
Belarusian statutory accounting
principles
Companies operating in Belarus are
subject to requirements based on the
Civil Code, the Law on Accounting
and Reporting and the standard chart
of accounts as well as accounting
regulations issued by the Finance
Ministry and the NBRB. Some
requirements are formally in line with
IFRS but may be interpreted and applied
very differently in practice.
Despite the existence of accounting
standards for the banking system and
Finance Ministry regulations for other
sectors, accounting methods and
approaches in Belarus are determined
by numerous orders and guidance
letters issued by the Finance Ministry
and the NBRB.
These and other factors may result in
significant departures from standard
requirements, which leads to further
inconsistencies with IFRS (in addition
to those outlined below). The major
differences are as follows:
• Differences in the determination of
reporting currency and functional
currency (statutory financial
statements must always be prepared
in the national currency)
• Source documents used for statutory
and tax accounting purposes must be
in prescribed formats
• The impact of hyperinflation is not
reflected in the Belarusian accounting
system

• Inconsistent application of guidance
requiring parent companies with
one or more subsidiaries to prepare
both consolidated and separate
financial statements. Under IFRS,
consolidation is mandatory
• Current regulations allow the
revaluation of entire classes of
fixed assets to be carried out in
accordance with national accounting
principles
• Differences in the accounting
treatment of authorized capital and
provisions.
Differences between national and
IFRS accounting principles increase
costs for companies striving to raise
capital in different markets owing to
the need to prepare multiple sets of
financial statements. Such differences
also lead to uncertainty as to which
set of financial data reflects the true
state of affairs. The gradual transition
to IFRS under the guidance of the
Council of Ministers and the adoption
of new laws and regulations on the
preparation of consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRS are
undoubtedly important steps towards
improving the Belarusian accounting
system and achieving convergence with
international accounting standards.
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Individuals
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Employment
There is a critical shortage of highly
skilled workers across industries,
causing intense competition. This is
explained by a number of factors,
including Belarus’s declining population
and a deterioration in the quality of
education, which have contributed to
the growing scarcity of skilled labour in
Minsk and other regions.
The Belarusian Labour Code
The Belarusian Labour Code serves as
the legal framework for labour relations
in Belarus. It sets out procedures for
hiring and dismissing employees and
contains provisions on working time,
vacations, business trips, compensation,
and so on. The Labour Code is primarily
aimed at protecting the rights and
interests of employees.
Belarusian labour legislation applies not
only to Belarusian citizens but also to
foreign citizens working in Belarus.
The standard working day in Belarus
is 8 hours and the standard working
week is 40 hours. There are strict rules
on overtime. Under the Labour Code,
employers must normally obtain an
employee’s consent to work overtime
and must either compensate them at
increased rates or give them extra days
off. The maximum number of overtime
hours that an employee may work
during a year is 180 hours, with a limit
of 10 such hours per working week. A
working day, including overtime, may
not be longer than 12 hours. Employees

may work irregular working hours, but
in this case they must be compensated
with additional leave of up to seven days
per year.
In general, the minimum period of paid
annual leave is 24 calendar (as opposed
to working) days.
Female employees are generally entitled
to 126 calendar days of maternity
leave, during which time they receive
an allowance paid out of the Social
Security Fund amounting to 100% of
average pay, but not more than three
times the average wage in Belarus in
the month preceding the beginning of
the maternity leave. After childbirth,
mothers are entitled to a one-time
allowance of approximately USD 1,000
or more (depending on the number of
children in the family). Employees are
entitled to childcare leave for children
under three years of age, which may
be granted to either the mother or the
father according to the wishes of the
family. The childcare allowance is paid to
the employee by his or her employer out
of the Social Security Fund and amounts
to the equivalent of around USD 180
or more depending on the number of
children in the family and other factors.
Sickness benefits are also payable out
of the Social Security Fund at 80% of
average pay for working days during the
first 12 calendar days of an illness and
100% thereafter.
Belarusian labour law grants additional
leave and various other benefits for
individuals who work in harmful and/or
dangerous conditions.

Recruitment
Hiring an employee requires the
preparation of a written employment
agreement and an internal document
in the form of an official appointment
order stating the name, position
and date of appointment of the new
employee. An employment agreement
may be concluded for an indefinite term
or for a term stated in the agreement.
One type of fixed-term employment
agreement is an employment contract.
The conclusion of employment contracts
is more common because they give
employers a number of significant
advantages, such as the ability to
conclude a contract for one year
(and up to five years), irrespective of
the industry in which the employer
operates and the nature of the duties
involved, as well as broader scope for
the termination of the contract on the
employer’s initiative.
As from January 2020, Belarusian law
allows the conclusion of remote working
employment agreements. Remote
working means that the employee
works away from the employer’s
premises using information technology
to perform work and communicate
with the employer. The working hours
of a remote worker are laid down in
the employment agreement with the
employer or are determined by the
employee himself if so provided in the
agreement.
An employee may normally be hired
subject to a probationary period of up to
three months.
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The employer is responsible for updating
the employee’s employment record
book. Where a new hire is employed
for the first time, the employer must
arrange for an employment record book
and a social insurance certificate to be
issued for him or her.
Termination of employment
An employment agreement may be
terminated on grounds provided for in
the Labour Code. The Code sets out
termination procedures, which must be
strictly observed to minimize the risk
of litigation. The grounds provided for
in the Code for the termination of an
employment agreement are as follows:
• Mutual consent of the parties
• Expiry of the term of the employment
agreement (in the case of a fixedterm agreement)
• The employee’s initiative
• The employer’s initiative
• Circumstances beyond the parties’
control (force majeure events) and
certain other grounds
Termination at the employer’s
initiative may occur only under certain
circumstances. An employer may
terminate an employment agreement
if the employee commits particular
violations or routinely fails to perform
his or her duties. Other cases in
which termination may be initiated by
the employer is when a company is
liquidated, staff reductions are made or
the employee is not suitably qualified
for the position held or work performed,
66
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as must be confirmed by the results of
an assessment procedure (which is also
regulated by law).
The Labour Code allows employers to
terminate an employment agreement
before the end of a probation period
if the employee’s performance up to
that point has been unsatisfactory. In
this case the employer must give the
employee at least three days’ notice
of the termination of his employment
(notice may also be given on the last day
of the probation period).

under the Labour Code do not apply to
arrangements under a civil contract.
A civil contract must be concluded in
writing and specify, inter alia:
• Payment procedures, including
amounts payable
• The obligation of the client
(employer) to pay social security
contributions on behalf of individuals
(employees)
• Obligations of the parties to ensure
safe working conditions and liability
for failing to do so
• Grounds for early termination

Compensation
Compensation depends on the
complexity, nature and characteristics
of the work, general working conditions
and the employee’s qualifications. There
are no limits on compensation.
Many employers have begun setting
salaries pegged to foreign currency.
Regardless of how compensation is
determined, however, it must be paid in
Belarusian roubles.
Work under civil contracts
Besides employment agreements,
individuals may also be hired to
perform work or render services under
a civil contract. Civil contracts and the
relationships that arise from them are
governed not by the Labour Code but
by the Civil Code and Presidential Edict
No. 314 of 6 July 2005. This means
that some of the guarantees (such as
paid leave) granted to an employee

Migration legislation
Entry and stay of foreign citizens
in Belarus
To enter Belarus a foreign citizen
must obtain a visa. Information on the
different types of visas is given below.
Belarus has introduced a visa-free entryexit regime for citizens of 74 countries,
including EU member states.
The visa-free regime is available to
foreign citizens entering Belarus via
Minsk National Airport (international
arrivals area) for a temporary stay of up
to 30 days. The visa-free regime does
not apply to persons arriving in Belarus
on flights from Russia or intending to
fly to Russia from Belarus, since such
flights are classed as internal and are
not subject to border controls.
Different visa-free timeframes and
conditions may be agreed on in bilateral
and multilateral treaties.

As a rule, foreigners arriving in Belarus
are required to register within five days,
excluding Sundays and public holidays,
with the local citizenship and migration
office at the location of their temporary
stay in Belarus.
Effective from 1 July 2020 that time
limit will be increased from 5 to 10 days,
but not excluding Sundays and public
holidays.
If foreigners have booked a stay
at a hotel or spa centre, those
establishments will arrange their
registration. Foreigners entering Belarus
through border crossing points may also
register online through the e-services
portal (portal.gov.by). Russian citizens
are exempt from the registration
requirement if they stay in Belarus
for fewer than 90 days. For citizens
of Armenia, Kazakhstan, Kyrgyzstan,
Latvia, Lithuania, the UAE and Ukraine,
that period is 30 days.
Foreign citizens holding a valid residence
permit do not need a visa to enter or
leave Belarus.
1. Entry visa
An entry visa gives a foreign citizen the
right to enter, stay in and leave Belarus.
As a rule, it is issued by Belarusian
diplomatic missions and consulates in
foreign countries. A foreign citizen may
also apply for a Belarusian visa in the
airport upon arrival.
Entry visas are divided into transit visas
(issued for travel in transit through

Belarus), short-term visas (issued for up
to 90 days) and long-term visas (issued
for up to one year with the right to stay
for 90 days). There are single-entry,
double-entry and multiple-entry visas.
A short-term entry visa (category C)
is issued for a period of no more than
90 days, inter alia, for the following
purposes:
• A business trip, on the basis of an
application from a Belarusian legal
entity
• Private matters, e.g. on the basis of
an invitation from an individual
• Employment, on the basis of a
notarized copy of a special work
permit
A long-term entry visa (category D) is
issued for multiple entry to Belarus,
inter alia, for the following purposes:
• Making business trips, on the basis
of an application from a Belarusian
legal entity and other visa support
documents confirming the existence
of business ties with the host
organization
• Private matters, e.g. on the basis of
an invitation from an individual
• Employment, for citizens of safe
countries of origin, on the basis of
an application from a Belarusian
legal entity or the Belarusian
representative office of a foreign
organization, a notarized copy of
a special work permit and other
documents

2. Temporary residence permit
A temporary residence permit is a
document that allows a foreign citizen to
reside in Belarus while it is in force.
It is issued, inter alia, to foreigners who
have come to Belarus to work or engage
in entrepreneurial activity. A temporary
residence permit is granted for a period
of up to one year and allows foreign
citizens to stay in Belarus without a visa.
From 1 July 2020, highly skilled workers
will be able to apply for a temporary
residence permit valid for up to two
years (see below for information on who
is classified as a highly skilled worker).
A temporary residence permit may
also be issued to family members of a
foreign citizen who is due to receive
or has received a temporary residence
permit, provided that there is a legal
source of income sufficient to maintain
the foreign citizen and his or her family
members at the minimum subsistence
level established in Belarus during their
temporary residence.

3. Exit-entry visa
A foreigner who has a temporary
residence permit may periodically leave
Belarus and re-enter if he or she has a
valid visa.
A foreigner whose entry visa has expired
may obtain an exit-entry visa issued by
the local citizenship and migration office
of the Ministry of Internal Affairs at the
location of the foreigner’s temporary
residence.
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A multiple exit-entry visa is issued to
foreign citizens who have received a
temporary residence permit for one
year, but not for longer than the validity
period of the temporary residence
permit.

1. Permit to hire foreign labour

Employment of foreign citizens

To receive the permit, the employer
must submit original or notarized
copies of all required documents to the
Citizenship and Migration Department
of the Ministry of Internal Affairs. The
permit is valid for one year.

The hiring of a foreign citizen who does
not have a permanent residence permit
and intends to come to Belarus to work
is a multi-stage process in which both
the employer and the foreign citizen are
involved.
The process consists of the following
steps:
• The employer obtains a permit to hire
foreign labour (see the “Permit to
hire foreign labour” section below)
• The employer obtains an individual
work permit for each foreign worker
(see the “Individual work permit”
section below)
• The employer and the employee
conclude an employment agreement
which is registered by the employer
(see the “Registration of employment
agreements” section below)
• The employee receives a Belarusian
entry visa (see the “Entry visa”
section above)
• The employee registers with local
internal affairs authorities on arriving
in Belarus. The employee may then
apply for a temporary residence
permit (see the “Temporary
residence permit” section above)
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To hire more than 10 foreign workers,
excluding highly skilled workers and a
person hired as the CEO of a company
of which he or she is a co-founder, an
employer must apply for a permit to
employ foreign labour in Belarus.

3. Registration of employment
agreements
An employer must register employment
agreements/contracts and any
amendments thereto affecting essential
conditions of the agreement, clauses
relating to the termination, modification
or extension of the agreement or
conditions of relocation to Belarus
(including meals, accommodation and
health care) within one month after they
are signed. The term of the employment
agreement may not be longer than that
of the work permit.

2. Individual work permit
After obtaining the above permit (if
required), the Belarusian employer must
apply for individual work permits for all
foreign employees, entitling them to
work in Belarus. If a foreign citizen plans
to work for more than one Belarusian
employer, he or she must obtain work
permits for each contract.

Personal income tax

Permits are issued by citizenship and
migration offices of the Minsk city and
regional internal affairs departments
for a period of one year, extendable by
a further year. For highly skilled foreign
workers, permits may be granted for two
years and extended by the same period.

The following types of income are
subject to PIT:

A foreign citizen or stateless person is
considered a highly skilled worker if they
have certified professional expertise,
skills and abilities and at least five years’
relevant work experience and their
pay under the employment agreement
exceeds 15 times the statutory
minimum wage in Belarus (around USD
2,700 a month).

Taxpayers
Personal income tax (PIT) is payable by
individuals.
Taxable income

• Income received by tax residents of
Belarus from sources in Belarus and
elsewhere
• Income received from sources in
Belarus by individuals who are not tax
residents of Belarus
Individuals are tax residents of Belarus
if they spend more than 183 days in
Belarus in a calendar year.
Income from sources in Belarus
Income from sources in Belarus
includes:

• Remuneration for the performance
of employment or other duties or
the performance of work or services
which is received from Belarusian
companies or entrepreneurs, from
foreign entities operating in Belarus
through a permanent establishment
or from Belarusian representative
offices of foreign entities, irrespective
of where the duties were performed
or the source from which the
remuneration was paid

• Income from the sale of immovable
property situated in Belarus, and
other types of income

Tax rates
The basic rate of personal income tax
applicable to most types of income is
13%. Other rates are specified in the
table below.

• Pensions, benefits, stipends and
other similar income received by
individuals in accordance with
Belarusian law
• Dividends and interest received
from a Belarusian company and
interest received from a Belarusian
entrepreneur and/or a foreign
company operating in Belarus
through a permanent establishment
• Insurance indemnity and/or benefits
received upon the occurrence of
an insured event from a Belarusian
insurance company and/or a foreign
company operating through a
permanent establishment in Belarus
• Income from the use of intellectual
property in Belarus
• Income from the leasing or other use
of property in Belarus
• Income from the sale in Belarus of
shares or other securities or equity
interests in foreign companies and
income from the sale of shares or
other securities and equity interests
in Belarusian companies
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13%

the basic rate of income
tax applicable to most types
of income
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Type of income

Rate

Dividends from Belarusian companies, provided that no profit distribution was
made to participants/shareholders of the company concerned which are Belarusian
residents:
• In the last three consecutive years

6%

• In the last five consecutive years

0%

Income in the form of winnings (returned bets) received from gaming companies
which are Belarusian legal entities

4%

Income assessed by the tax authorities in accordance with the law on amounts
by which an individual’s expenditure exceeds his income, and income of individuals
who engage in business without state registration in violation of legislative
requirements

16%

Tax payments
In most cases, personal income tax is
calculated, withheld and paid by tax
agents. Tax agents are Belarusian
companies and entrepreneurs, foreign
companies operating in Belarus
through a permanent establishment
and Belarusian representative offices
of foreign companies from which a
taxpayer has received income.
Tax agents must normally pay PIT no
later than the day on which income is
paid.
In some cases, the Tax Code requires
individuals to submit tax returns and pay
tax themselves, for example:
• Where income is received from
individuals or entities that are not tax
agents
• Where income is received by an
individual who is a Belarusian tax
resident from sources outside the
country
In such cases individuals must submit
an annual tax return no later than
31 March of the year following the
reporting calendar year and pay tax no
later than 1 June of the year following
the reporting year.
Tax deductions
Taxable income may be reduced by
amounts of tax deductions. PIT payers
may apply the following deductions:
• Amounts of tuition fees paid by
the taxpayer for first higher, first

specialized secondary or first
vocational education at Belarusian
educational institutions and
repayments to Belarusian banks,
companies and entrepreneurs for
loans used for those purposes
• Amounts paid by the taxpayer to
Belarusian insurance companies
or refunded to the tax agent as
insurance contributions under
voluntary life insurance or additional
pension agreements concluded for
a term of at least three years or
under voluntary medical insurance
agreements
• Expenses incurred by the taxpayer
or his or her family members
who are registered as persons in
need of improved housing for the
construction or purchase of a singlefamily house or an apartment in
Belarus or for the repayment of loans
received from Belarusian banks,
companies or entrepreneurs for
those purposes
• Documented expenses incurred by
the taxpayer in connection with the
acquisition or sale of property
These deductions are granted by the tax
agent or by the tax authorities when the
taxpayer files a tax return. Taxpayers
may also claim a number of standard
tax deductions, such as a standard
deduction of BYN 117 (approximately
USD 55) per month if their income does
not exceed BYN 709 (approximately
USD 335) per month and a deduction
of BYN 34 (approximately USD 15) per
month for each child under 18 years old
and/or each dependent.

Exempt income
Individuals who are Belarusian residents
are exempt from tax on the following
types of income:
• Unemployment benefits and state
social insurance benefits (such as
maternity and childcare (for children
under three years) benefits), except
for temporary disability allowances
• Pensions paid in accordance with
Belarusian or foreign legislation
• All types of compensation provided
for in Belarusian legislation and
resolutions of the Council of Ministers
(except for compensation for unused
annual leave or for the depreciation
of vehicles or equipment belonging to
an employee)
• Income of up to BYN 7,003
(approximately USD 3,320) received
from individuals as a gift from all
sources combined in one tax period
• Income from the sale of one house,
one apartment, one summer cottage
or one land parcel (or other similar
properties) during a period of five
calendar years
• Income from the sale of one car
during a calendar year
• Income from the sale of inherited
property
• Income from the sale of equity
interests in Belarusian companies
that the individual has owned
continuously for at least three years,
and shares in Belarusian companies
if they are sold at least three years
after they were acquired
Doing Business in Belarus
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• Income from the sale of other property (subject to limitations specified by the
law) and certain other types of income

Compulsory social security
contributions

Payroll taxes

The payers of compulsory social
security contributions (pension and
social insurance) are:

Sample payroll tax calculation
Below is an example of a payroll tax calculation for a qualified welder whose annual
gross pay is USD 30,000.
Expenses

USD

1. Employer’s expenses
1.1 	Compulsory social security contributions (pension and social insurance)
Calculated at 34% of the monthly contribution base, which is gross salary,
but not more than USD 2,937 (the average monthly wage in Belarus multiplied
by five)*

10,200

1.2 	Professional pension insurance contributions
Calculated at a maximum rate of 9% of the monthly contribution base, which
is gross salary, but not more than USD 1,762 (the average monthly wage in
Belarus multiplied by three)*

1903

1.3 	Contributions for compulsory insurance against work-related accidents and
occupational illnesses. Calculated at 0.6% of gross salary

180

1.4 	Total annual expenses of the employer for one employee

12,283

2. Employee’s expenses
2.1 	Compulsory social insurance/pension insurance contributions. Calculated at 1%
of the monthly contribution base, which is gross salary, but not more than
USD 2,937 per month (the average monthly wage in Belarus multiplied
by five)*
2.2 	Personal income tax withheld from the employee
Calculated at 13% of gross salary

300

3900

3. Employee’s net income
3.1	Net annual income per employee

25,800

* Calculations made using the average wage of BYN 1,238.7 for December 2019 and the exchange rate
of USD 1 = BYN 2.1085 set by the NBRB on 1 January 2020.
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• Employers: legal entities and
representative offices and branches
thereof with a separate balance
sheet; Belarusian representative
offices of foreign companies and
foreign companies operating in
Belarus through a permanent
establishment; individual
entrepreneurs who hire individuals
under employment agreements or
civil contracts; individuals who hire
other individuals under employment
agreements
• Employed individuals: Belarusian
citizens, foreigners and stateless
persons working under employment
agreements or civil contracts or
on the basis of membership of
(participation in) legal entities of
any kind; individuals who are the
owners (participants, founders) of a
company and act as manager of the
company
• Individuals who pay compulsory
social security contributions
independently (this category is not
covered in this report)

Base for compulsory social security
contributions
Contributions are paid by employers and
individuals on all income, both in cash
and in kind, regardless of its source.
The list of types of income that are
exempt from compulsory social security
contributions is approved by the Council
of Ministers. The total monthly base for
compulsory social security contributions
is limited to five times the average
monthly wage in Belarus in the month
preceding the month in respect of which
the contributions are paid.
Foreign citizens working in Belarus
are subject to compulsory state social
insurance on the same terms as
Belarusian citizens.
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35%

the unified compulsory
social security contribution
payment

Rates of compulsory social security contributions
Compulsory social security contributions are paid as a single payment (35%)
consisting of:
Compulsory social security contributions for retirement, disability and survivor
insurance (pension insurance), including:
• Employer contributions
• Employee contributions withheld by the employer from the employee’s pay
Compulsory social security contributions for temporary disability, maternity,
childcare (for children under three years), etc. (social insurance)

29%
28%
1%
6%

Some categories of payers are entitled to reduced pension insurance contributions,
such as employers in the agricultural industry, disability associations, etc.
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Payment and reporting
Compulsory social security contributions
are paid to the Belarusian Social
Security Fund. Reports on such
contributions must be filed quarterly,
no later than the 20th of the month
following the reporting quarter.
Employers that employ individuals
under employment agreements must
pay contributions no later than the
pay date for the payment of salary for
the preceding month. Contributions
for individuals who work under civil
contracts or on the basis of membership
of/participation in any kind of legal
entity must be paid by the employer
on days on which payments are made
to them, but no later than the pay
date for the payment of salary for the
preceding month. If the pay date is later
than the 20th of the following month,
contributions must be paid no later than
the 20th of the following month.

Professional pension insurance
contributions
Employers must pay professional
pension insurance contributions for
certain categories of workers, including
full-time workers who work underground
or in especially harmful or physically
demanding jobs.
Contributions are paid on all kinds
of payments made to an employee
in cash and in kind. The contribution
base is limited to three times the
average monthly wage in Belarus in the
month preceding the month for which
contributions are paid.
The rate of professional pension
insurance contributions ranges from
1.5% to 9%. Payment and reporting
requirements and exemptions are the
same as for compulsory social security
contributions.

Contributions for compulsory
insurance against work-related
accidents and occupational illnesses
to Belgosstrakh (the Belarusian
National Unitary Insurance
Enterprise)
Contributions are paid on all types
of payments to individuals subject to
compulsory insurance against workrelated accidents or occupational
illnesses, regardless of the source of
financing. This type of compulsory
insurance applies not only to Belarusian
citizens, but also to foreign citizens and
stateless persons living in Belarus.
The rate is 0.6%. Belgosstrakh may
increase or reduce the rate for payers
depending on the occupational risk
class. Contributions must be paid
no later than the 25th of the month
following the reporting quarter in which
payments were made to employees.

Companies with an average headcount
of up to 100 employees for a calendar
year must pay contributions at least
once a quarter not later than the 20th
of the month following the reporting
quarter.
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Appendix 1. Useful addresses and contact information
The Belarus country code (+375) must be dialled when calling from outside Belarus.
Presidential Administration

Ministry of Economy

State Customs Committee

Kirova St., 43
Minsk 220016
Belarus
Tel.: +375 (17) 222 3778
president.gov.by

Bersona St., 14
Minsk 220030
Belarus
Tel.: +375 (17) 222 6048
economy.gov.by

Mogilevskaya St., 45/1
Minsk 220007
Belarus
Tel.: +375 (17) 218 9000
customs.gov.by

Council of Ministers

Ministry of Finance

Ministry of Justice

Sovietskaya St., 11
Minsk 220010
Belarus
Tel.: +375 (17) 222 6046
government.by
National Agency for Investments
and Privatization
Bersona St., 14
Minsk 220030
Belarus
Tel.: +375 (17) 200 8175
investinbelarus.by
Belarusian Chamber of Commerce
and Industry
Kommunisticheskaya St., 11
Minsk 220029
Belarus
Tel.: +375 (17) 290 7249
cci.by
National Bank of the Republic
of Belarus
Nezavisimosti Ave., 20
Minsk 220008
Belarus
Tel.: +375 (17) 306 0002
nbrb.by

Sovietskaya St., 7
Minsk 220010
Belarus
Tel.: +375 (17) 222 6137
minfin.gov.by

Kollektornaya St., 10
Minsk 220004
Belarus
Tel.: +375 (17) 306 3730
minjust.gov.by

Ministry of Foreign Affairs

Ministry of Agriculture and Food

Lenina St., 19
Minsk 220030
Belarus
Tel.: +375 (17) 327 2922
mfa.gov.by

Kirova St., 15
Minsk 220030
Belarus
Tel.: +375 (17) 327 3751
mshp.minsk.by

Ministry of Internal Affairs

Ministry of Communications and
Information Technology

Gorodskoi Val St., 4
Minsk 220030
Belarus
Tel.: +375 (17) 218 7989
mvd.gov.by
Taxes and Levies Ministry
Sovietskaya St., 9
Minsk 220010
Belarus
Tel.: +375 (17) 229 7929
nalog.gov.by

Nezavisimosti Ave., 10
Minsk 220050
Belarus
Tel.: +375 (17) 287 8706
mpt.gov.by
Ministry of Health
Myasnikova St., 39
Minsk 220048
Belarus
Tel.: +375 (17) 222 6095
minzdrav.gov.by
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Ministry of Education

National Statistical Committee

State Control Committee

Sovietskaya St., 9
Minsk 220010
Belarus
Tel.: +375 (17) 327 4736
edu.gov.by

Partizanski Ave., 12
Minsk 220070
Belarus
Tel.: +375 (17) 367 1653
belstat.gov.by

K. Marksa St., 3
Minsk 220030
Belarus
Tel.: +375 (17) 327 2422
kgk.gov.by

Ministry for Emergency Situations

State Security Committee

Revolyutsionnaya St., 5
Minsk 220030
Belarus
Tel.: +375 (17) 229 3590
mchs.gov.by

Nezavisimosti Ave., 17
Minsk 220030
Belarus
Tel.: +375 (17) 219 9230
kgb.by
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Appendix 2. Currency exchange rates (as at the end of the period) adjusted for
the 2016 reform of the Belarusian rouble
2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

USD/BYN

0.2863

0.3000

0.8350

0.8500

0.9510

1.1850

1.8569

1.9585

1.9727

2.1598

2.1036

ЕUR/BYN

0.4106

0.3972

1.0800

1.0990

1.3080

1.4380

2.0300

2.0450

2.3553

2.4734

2.3524

RUB 100 / BYN

0.9466

0.9844

2.6100

2.7500

2.9050

2.1450

2.5533

3.2440

3.4279

3.1128

3.4043

Source: National Bank of the Republic of Belarus

Appendix 3. Economic indicators
2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

Nominal GDP, USD billion

49.2

55.1

58.8

63.3

72.8

75.8

54.9

48.1

54.7

59.6

62.7

Real GDP growth rate (%)

100.2

107.7

105.5

101.7

101.0

101.7

96.2

97.5

102.5

103.0

101.2

Consumer price index (%)

110.1

109.9

208.7

121.8

116.5

116.2

112

110.6

104.6

105.6

104.7

96.9

111.7

109.1

105.9

95.1

101.9

93.4

99.6

106.1

105.7

101.0

0.9

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.5

1.0

0.8

0.5

0.3

0.3

Industrial output (%)
Unemployment rate (%)

Sources: National Bank of the Republic of Belarus, National Statistical Committee of the Republic of Belarus
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Appendix 4. Withholding tax rates under double tax treaties
Belarus has double tax treaties with the
following countries: Armenia, Austria,
Azerbaijan, Bahrain, Bangladesh,
Belgium, Bulgaria, China, Croatia,
Cyprus, the Czech Republic, Ecuador,
Egypt, Estonia, Finland, Georgia,
Germany, Hong Kong, Hungary, India,
Indonesia, Iran, Ireland, Israel, Italy,
Kazakhstan, Kuwait, Kyrgyzstan, Laos,
Latvia, Lebanon, Lithuania, Moldova,
Mongolia, the Netherlands, North Korea,
North Macedonia, Oman, Pakistan,
Poland, Qatar, Romania, the Russian
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Federation, Saudi Arabia, Singapore,
Slovakia, Slovenia, South Africa, South
Korea, Sri Lanka, Sweden, Switzerland,
Syria, Tajikistan, Thailand, Turkey,
Turkmenistan, the UK, Ukraine, the
United Arab Emirates, Uzbekistan,
Venezuela, Vietnam and Yugoslavia
(effective for Serbia).
Belarus has double tax treaties with the
following countries as a legal successor
of the Soviet Union: Denmark, France,
Japan, Malaysia, Spain and the US.

According to the Belarusian Taxes and
Levies Ministry, similar treaties with
Canada and Norway are no longer in
force. Belarus has signed double tax
treaties with Libya and Sudan and a new
double tax treaty with Spain, but they
have not yet taken effect.
The table below provides an overview
of withholding tax rates for foreign
companies under Belarus’s double
tax treaties and under its national tax
legislation.

Dividends, %

Interest, %

Royalties, %

Dividends, %

Interest, %

Armenia

10/12 (а)

0/10 (v)

10 (tt)

Moldova

12

0/10 (bb)

15

Austria

5/12 (е)

0/5 (gg)

5 (uu)

Mongolia

10 (ww)

0/10 (nn)

10 (tt)

Azerbaijan
Bahrain
Bangladesh

0/5/12 (e)(w) 0/5 (yy) (xx)

Royalties, %

12

0/10 (v)

10 (tt)

Netherlands

5 (ww)

0/5 (vv) (xx)

5 (uu)

North Korea

10 (ww)

0/10(s)(v)

10/12 (fff)

0/7 .5 (vv)
(xx)

10 (tt)

North Macedonia

5/12 (e)

10

10 (tt)

Oman

0/5 (ii)

0/5 (ii)

10 (tt)

Pakistan

11/12 (g)

0/10 (s)(v)
(bb)

15
0

Belgium

5/12 (е)

0/10 (z)

5 (uu)

Bulgaria

10 (ww)

0/10 (v)

10 (tt)

China

10 (ww)

0/10 (u)

10 (tt)

Poland

10/12 (a)

0/10 (bb)

3/5/10 (f)
10 (tt)

Croatia

5/12 (e)

10

10 (tt)

Qatar

5 (ww)

0/5 (v) (xx)

5 (uu)

Cyprus

5/10/12 (d)

5 (xx)

5 (uu)

Russia

12

0/10 (v)

10 (tt)

5/10 (jj)

0/5 (vv) (xx)

5 (uu)

Romania

10 (ww)

0/10 (v)

15

12

0

0

Saudi Arabia

5 (ww)

5 (xx)

10 (tt)

5/10 (jj)

0/10 (vv)

10 (tt)

Singapore

0/5 (ccc)

0/5 (ddd)

5 (uu)

12

10

15

Slovakia

10/12 (g)

0/10 (v)

5/10 (i)

Estonia

10 (ww)

0/10 (s) (vv)

10 (tt)

Slovenia

5 (ww)

0/5 (pp) (xx)

5 (uu)

Finland

5/12 (e)

0/5 (hh)

5 (uu)

South Africa

5/12 (e)

0/5/10 (l)

5/10 (m)

12

0/10 (r)

0

South Korea

5/12 (e)

0/10 (p)

5 (uu)

Georgia

5/10 (jj)

0/5 (hhh)

5 (uu)

Spain (q)

12

0

0/5 (y)

Germany

5/12 (dd)

0/5 (ee)

3/5 (ff)

Sri Lanka

7 .5/10 (eee)

0/10 (vv)

10 (tt)

Hong Kong

0/5 (iii)

0/5 (iii)

3/5 (jjj)

Sweden

0/5/10 (b)

0/5 (rr)

3/5/10 (c)

Hungary

5/12 (e)

5 (xx)

5 (uu)

5/12 (e)

0/5/8 (aa)

3/5/10 (c)

10/12 (g)

0/10 (bb)(vv)

15

12

10

15

10/12 (ww)

0/10 (lll)

10/15 (tt)

Tajikistan

12

0/10 (bb)

15

10/12 (g)

0/5 (v)(xx)

5 (uu)

Thailand

10 (ww)

0/10 (qq)

15

0/5/10 (oo)

5 (ggg)

5 (uu)

Turkey

10/12 (g)

0/10 (v)

10 (tt)

Israel

10 (ww)

0/5/10 (t)

5/10 (cc)

Italy

5/12 (e)

0/8 (mm)

6 (zz)

Japan (q)

12

0/10 (ss)

0/10 (n)

Kazakhstan

12

0/10 (v)

15

0/5 (x)

0/5 (vv) (xx)

10 (tt)

US (q)

12

0

0

12

0/10 (v)

15

Uzbekistan

12

0/10 (v)(bb)

15

5/10 (aaa)

0/8 (bbb)

5 (uu)

Venezuela

5/12 (e)

0/5(kk)

5/10 (ll)

Czech Republic
Denmark (q)
Ecuador
Egypt

France (q)

India
Indonesia
Iran
Ireland

Kuwait
Kyrgyzstan
Laos

Switzerland
Syria

Turkmenistan
UK
Ukraine
United Arab Emirates

Latvia

10 (ww)

0/10 (s) (vv)

10 (tt)

Vietnam

Lebanon

7 .5 (ww)

0/5 (v) (xx)

5 (uu)

Lithuania

10 (ww)

0/10 (s) (vv)

10 (tt)

Yugoslavia (effective for
Serbia)

12

0/10 (s)(v)
(bb)

10/15 (o)

Malaysia (q)

Countries with
no double tax treaty
with Belarus

12

0/10 (v)

15

5/12 (ww)

0/5/10 (kkk)

5/15 (uu)

12

10

15

5/10 (j)

0/5 (s) (xx)

5/10 (k)

12

0/10 (v)

15

5/12 (e)

8 (h)

10 (tt)

12

10

15
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(a)

A 10% rate applies if the recipient is the beneficial owner of the
dividends and owns at least 30% of the capital of the company
paying the dividends. A 12% rate applies in all other cases.

(b)

A 5% rate applies if the recipient is the beneficial owner of the
dividends and owns at least 30% of the capital of the company
paying the dividends. A 10% rate applies in other cases where
the recipient is the beneficial owner of the dividends. Dividends
are not taxed if the beneficial owner is a company (other than
a partnership) owning 100% of the capital of the company
paying the dividends, but only insofar as the profits from
which the dividends are paid were derived from industrial or
manufacturing activities, farming, forestry or fishing activities
or tourism (including restaurants and hotels), provided that
those profits are not exempt from tax.

(c)

A 3% rate applies if the recipient is the beneficial owner
of the royalties paid for the use of, or the right to use,
any patent, secret formula or process, or for information
concerning industrial, commercial or scientific experience.
A 5% rate applies if the recipient is the beneficial owner of the
royalties paid for the use of, or the right to use, any industrial,
commercial or scientific equipment. A 10% rate applies in all
other cases where the recipient is the beneficial owner of the
royalties.

(d)

A 5% rate applies if the recipient is the beneficial owner of the
income and has invested at least 200,000 ECU in the capital
of the company paying the income. A 10% rate applies if the
recipient is the beneficial owner of the income and owns at
least 25% of the capital of the company paying the income.
A 12% rate applies in all other cases.

(e)

A 5% rate applies if the beneficial owner is a company that
owns at least 25% of the capital of the company (other than
a partnership) paying the dividends. A 12% rate applies in all
other cases (in the case of the Netherlands, please refer to note
[w]).

(f)
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A 3% rate applies to amounts paid to the beneficial owner for
the use of, or the right to use, any patent, trademark, design
or model, plan, secret formula or process, or for information
concerning industrial, commercial or scientific experience.
A 5% rate applies to amounts paid to the beneficial owner
for the use of, or the right to use, industrial, commercial or
scientific equipment (including road transport). A 10% rate
applies to amounts paid to the beneficial owner for the use of,
or the right to use, any copyright of literary, artistic or scientific
work, including motion picture films and films or tapes for radio
and television broadcasting.
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(g)

A 10% rate (11% in the case of Pakistan) applies if the recipient
is the beneficial owner of the income and owns at least 25%
of the capital of the company paying the income. A 12% rate
applies in all other cases.

(h)

An 8% rate applies if the recipient is the beneficial owner of the
interest.

(i)

A 5% rate applies to amounts paid to the beneficial owner
for the use of any copyright of literary, artistic or scientific
work, including motion picture films, films or tapes and other
means of sound and image transmission. A 10% rate applies to
amounts paid to the beneficial owner for the use of, or the right
to use, any patent, trademark, design or model, plan, secret
formula or process, for information concerning industrial,
commercial or scientific experience, or for the use of, or the
right to use, industrial, commercial or scientific equipment or
vehicles.

(j)

A 5% rate applies if the beneficial owner is a company owning
USD 100,000 or more in the company paying the dividends.
A 10% rate applies in other cases where the recipient is the
beneficial owner of the dividends.

(k)

A 5% rate applies to amounts paid to the beneficial owner
for the use of, or the right to use, any copyright of scientific
work, any patent, trademark, design or model, plan, secret
formula or process, for the right to use information concerning
industrial, commercial or scientific equipment or vehicles,
or for information concerning industrial, commercial or
scientific experience. A 10% rate applies to amounts paid to
the beneficial owner for the use of, or the right to use, any
copyright of literary or artistic work, including motion picture
films and films or tapes for radio and television broadcasting.

(l)

A 0% rate applies to interest paid to a government, a state body
or a wholly state-owned entity. A 5% rate applies to interest
beneficially owned by a bank or any other financial institution.
A 10% rate applies in other cases where the recipient is the
beneficial owner.

(m)

A 5% rate applies to royalties paid to the beneficial owner for
industrial, commercial or scientific equipment or vehicles.
A 10% rate applies in all other cases where the recipient is the
beneficial owner.

(n)

A 0% rate applies to amounts paid to the beneficial owner for
the use of, or the right to use, any copyright of literary, artistic
or scientific work, including motion picture films and films
or tapes for radio and television broadcasting. A 10% rate
applies to amounts paid to the beneficial owner for the use of,

or the right to use, any patent, trademark, design or model,
plan, secret formula or process, for information concerning
industrial, commercial or scientific experience, or for the use
of, or the right to use, industrial, commercial or scientific
equipment or vehicles.
(o)

(p)

(q)

A 10% rate applies if the recipient is the beneficial owner of
the royalties in relation to amounts paid for the use of, or the
right to use, any patent, trademark, design or model, plan,
secret formula, process or copyright of scientific work, for the
use of, or the right to use, industrial, commercial or scientific
equipment, or for the use of, or the right to use, information
concerning industrial, commercial or scientific experience. A
15% rate applies if the recipient is the beneficial owner of the
royalties in relation to amounts paid for the use of, or the right
to use, motion picture films or tapes for radio and television
broadcasting, or any copyright of literary or artistic work.
A 0% rate applies to interest from the sale on credit of
industrial, commercial or scientific equipment, or if the interest
is paid to a government, a central bank, a local authority or a
financial institution performing functions of a governmental
nature, or if the interest is paid on a loan guaranteed or
indirectly financed by any of the above bodies and institutions.
A 10% rate applies in other cases where the recipient is the
beneficial owner of the interest.
Belarus observes double tax treaties concluded by the former
USSR with this state. The table shows tax rates under those
treaties.

finance the purchase of industrial, commercial, trade, medical
or scientific equipment). In other cases where the recipient is
the beneficial owner, higher rates apply.
(w)

A 0% rate applies if one of the following conditions is met:
• The recipient that is the beneficial owner of the dividends
owns more than 50% of the capital of the company paying the
dividends, provided that the recipient’s contribution to the
capital of the company is at least 250,000 ECU, or
• The recipient that is the beneficial owner of the dividends
owns more than 25% of the capital of the company paying
the dividends, provided that the recipient’s contribution to
the capital of the company is guaranteed or secured by a
government

(x)

A 0% rate applies to dividends paid to a government, a central
bank or other governmental agencies or financial institutions.
A 5% rate applies in all other cases where the recipient is the
beneficial owner of the dividends.

(y)

A 0% rate applies to amounts paid for the use of, or the right
to use, any copyright of literary, musical, artistic or scientific
work, excluding motion picture films and films or tapes for radio
and television broadcasting. A 5% rate applies in all other cases
where the recipient is the beneficial owner of the income from
copyright and licenses.

(z)

A 0% rate applies if one of the following conditions is met:
• The loan was approved by a government

(r)

A 0% rate applies to interest on loans from banks and
commercial loans. A 10% rate applies in all other cases.

• The interest is charged in connection with the sale on credit of
industrial, medical or scientific equipment and related services

(s)

A 0% rate applies to interest on government-guaranteed loans.

(t)

A 0% rate applies to interest paid to a government, a local
authority or a central bank. A 5% rate applies to interest paid to
and beneficially owned by a bank or other financial institution
or interest paid in connection with the sale on credit of any
industrial, commercial or scientific equipment. A 10% rate
applies in other cases where the recipient is the beneficial
owner of the income.

• The loan that was made to stimulate exports and is related to
the supply of industrial, medical or scientific equipment and
related services is secured or guaranteed by a government

(u)

(v)

A 0% rate applies to interest paid to a government, a local
authority, a central bank or any wholly state-owned financial
institution. A 10% rate applies in other cases where the
recipient is the beneficial owner of the interest.
A 0% rate applies to interest paid to a government or a central
bank (in the case of Turkey, a 0% rate also applies to interest
arising in Belarus and paid by Turkish Eximbank on loans to

A 10% rate applies in all other cases where the recipient is the
beneficial owner.
(aa) A 0% rate applies if one of the following conditions is met:
• The loan was approved by a government
• The interest was received in connection with the sale on credit
of industrial, trade, medical or scientific equipment
• The interest income is interest earned on government
securities
A 5% rate applies to interest on bank loans. An 8% rate applies
where the recipient is the beneficial owner of the interest.
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(bb) A 0% rate applies in cases where the loan was approved by a
government.
(cc) A 5% rate applies only to payments for the use of any copyright
of literary, artistic or scientific work, excluding motion picture
films, or for the right to use industrial, commercial or scientific
equipment or vehicles. A 10% rate applies in other cases where
the recipient is the beneficial owner of the royalties.
(dd) A 5% rate applies if the recipient is the beneficial owner of the
income and owns at least 20% of the capital of the company
paying the income, and its contribution is at least EUR
81,806.70. A 12% rate applies in all other cases.
(ee) A 0% rate applies to (i) interest arising in Belarus and paid to
the German Government, Deutsche Bundesbank, Kreditanstalt
fur Wiederaufbau or Deutsche Finanzierungsgesellschaft fur
Beteiligungen in Entwicklungslandеrn; (ii) interest arising on
export loans guaranteed by Hermes-Deckung and provided by
the German Government or (iii) interest paid to the beneficial
owner in connection with the sale on credit of any industrial,
commercial or scientific equipment or any loan made by a
bank or other financial institution to finance the sale of any
industrial, commercial or scientific equipment. A 5% rate applies
if the recipient is the beneficial owner of the interest.
(ff)

A 3% rate applies if the recipient is the beneficial owner of
the royalties for the use of, or the right to use, any copyright
of scientific work, for the use of, or the right to use, any
patent, trademark, design or model, plan, secret formula or
process, or for information concerning industrial, commercial
or scientific experience. A 5% rate applies if the recipient is
the beneficial owner of the royalties paid for the use of, or the
right to use, any copyright of literary or artistic work, including
motion picture films and films or tapes for radio and television
broadcasting, or for the use of, or the right to use, any type of
equipment and vehicles.

(gg) A 0% rate applies if the recipient is the beneficial owner of
the interest and one of the following conditions is met: (1)
the interest is paid to a contracting state, a local authority
or a central bank, (2) the interest is paid on a governmentapproved loan, or (3) the interest is paid on a loan that was
issued, guaranteed or secured by a governmental agency
(including Osterreichische Kontrollbank Aktiengesellschaft) for
the purpose of stimulating exports and relates to the supply
of industrial, trade, medical or scientific equipment. A 5% rate
applies in other cases where the recipient is the beneficial
owner of the interest.
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(hh) A 0% rate applies to interest paid to a government or central
bank, FINNFUND or FINNVERA. A 5% rate applies if the
recipient is the beneficial owner of the interest.
(ii)

A 0% rate applies where the recipient of the income is a
government, a central bank or the State General Reserve Fund
of the Sultanate of Oman or, in the case of interest, any wholly
or mainly state-owned entity. A 5% rate applies in all other
cases where the recipient is the beneficial owner of the income.

(jj)

A 5% rate applies if the beneficial owner of the income is a
company (other than a partnership) that owns at least 25%
of the capital of the company paying the income. A 10% rate
applies in other cases where the recipient is the beneficial
owner.

(kk) A 0% rate applies if the recipient is the beneficial owner of the
interest and one of the following conditions is met:
• The recipient of the income is a government or government
body, a central bank or an entity that is wholly or partially
state-owned, or
• The interest is paid on a government-guaranteed loan, or
• The interest is paid on a loan that is intended to stimulate
exports and relates to the supply by a company in the other
contracting state of any types of equipment or vehicles, or
• The interest is paid in connection with the sale on credit of any
types of equipment or vehicles
A 5% rate applies in all other cases where the recipient is the
beneficial owner of the interest.
(ll)

A 5% rate applies to royalties where they are received by the
beneficial owner as consideration for the use of, or the right
to use, a trademark or any copyright of scientific work or
computer software, or for the use of, or the right to use, any
types of equipment or vehicles. A 10% rate applies in all other
cases where the recipient is the beneficial owner.

(mm) A 0% rate applies where one of the following conditions is met:
• The interest is paid by a government or a state body
• The interest is paid to a government, a state body or a local
agency or body (including financial institutions) wholly owned
by the state or a state body
• The interest is paid to any other agency or body (including
financial institutions) on loans issued in connection with an
agreement between the contracting states

• The interest is paid in respect of debt claims guaranteed,
secured or indirectly financed by a government, a local
authority, a central bank or a financial institution that is wholly
state-owned. A 10% rate applies in all other cases where the
recipient is the beneficial owner of the interest.

An 8% rate applies in other cases where the recipient is the
beneficial owner of the interest.
(nn) A 0% rate applies to loans granted to a government or a central
bank. A 10% rate applies in all other cases where the recipient is
the beneficial owner of the interest.
(oo) A 0% rate applies to dividends received by the National
Treasury Management Agency of Ireland, the National Pensions
Reserve Fund of Ireland or any entity, including an agency or
an institution, wholly or mainly owned by the state. A 5% rate
applies if the beneficial owner is a company that owns at least
25% of the capital of the company (other than a partnership)
paying the dividends. A 10% rate applies in other cases where
the recipient is the beneficial owner of the dividends.
(pp) A 0% rate applies to interest paid or received by a government,
a political subdivision, a local authority or a central bank.
Higher rates apply in other cases.
(qq) A 0% rate applies to interest paid to a government, a central
bank or an institution whose capital is wholly owned by the
state or local authorities. A 10% rate applies if the recipient
is the beneficial owner or any bank, financial institution or
insurance company or if the interest is paid on debt arising in
connection with the sale on credit of any equipment, products
or services.
(rr)

A 0% rate applies where:
•T
 he interest is paid or received by a government, a political
subdivision, a local authority or a central bank
• The loan was approved by a government
•T
 he loan was made and is guaranteed by a state financial
authority for the purpose of stimulating exports or is
guaranteed on preferential terms
• The loan was made by a bank to stimulate exports
•T
 he interest is paid on debt arising in connection with the sale
on credit of any goods or industrial, commercial or scientific
equipment
A 5% rate applies in all other cases where the recipient is the
beneficial owner of the interest.

(ss) A 0% rate applies where one of the following conditions is met:
•T
 he interest is paid to a government, a local authority,
a central bank or any financial institution that is wholly
government-owned

(tt)

A 10% rate applies if the recipient is the beneficial owner of the
royalties.

(uu) A 5% rate applies if the recipient is the beneficial owner of the
royalties.
(vv) A 0% rate applies if the recipient of the interest is a government,
a political subdivision (in the case of Ecuador), a local authority,
a central bank or another governmental agency or governmentowned financial institution. In other cases where the recipient is
the beneficial owner of the interest, a higher rate applies.
(ww) A 10% rate (5% in the case of Bahrain, Qatar, Saudi Arabia,
Slovenia and the UK, 7.5% in the case of Lebanon) applies if the
recipient is the beneficial owner of the dividends.
(xx) A 5% rate (7.5% in the case of Bangladesh) applies if the
recipient is the beneficial owner of the interest.
(yy) A 0% rate applies where:
• The payer or recipient of the interest is a government, a
political subdivision, a local authority or a central bank
• The loan was approved by a government
• The loan was made and is guaranteed or secured by a
government, a central bank or another state-controlled
authority
• The loan was made or is guaranteed by a financial institution
to stimulate development, or the interest is paid in respect
of a loan or credit used for the purchase of industrial,
commercial, trade, medical or scientific equipment
(zz) A 6% rate applies if the recipient is the beneficial owner of the
royalties
(aaa) A 5% rate applies if the dividends are beneficially owned by
a company that directly owns at least 20% of the capital of
the company paying the dividends. A 10% rate applies in
other cases where the recipient is the beneficial owner of the
dividends.
(bbb) A 0% rate applies if the beneficial owner of the interest in the
case of Laos is the Government of Laos, the Bank of Laos or a
local authority of Laos. An 8% rate applies in other cases where
the recipient is the beneficial owner of the interest.
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(ccc) A 0% rate applies if the recipient
of the dividends in Singapore is
the Government of Singapore, the
Monetary Authority of Singapore
(the central bank), the Government
of Singapore Investment Corporation,
a statutory body or any institution
wholly or mainly owned by the
Government of Singapore as may
be agreed upon from time to time
by the competent authorities. A 5%
rate applies where the recipient is the
beneficial owner of the dividends.
(ddd) A 0% rate applies if the recipient
of the interest in Singapore is the
Government of Singapore, the
Monetary Authority of Singapore
(the central bank), the Government
of Singapore Investment Corporation,
a statutory body, a bank or any
institution wholly or mainly owned by
the Government of Singapore as may
be agreed upon from time to time
by the competent authorities. A 5%
rate applies where the recipient is the
beneficial owner of the interest.
(eee) A 7.5% rate applies if the beneficial
owner of the dividends is a company
that directly owns at least 25% of the
capital of the company paying the
dividends. A 10% rate applies where
the recipient is the beneficial owner of
the dividends.
(fff) A 10% rate applies if the recipient is
the beneficial owner of the dividends
and owns at least 10% of the capital
of the company paying the dividends.
A 12% rate applies in all other cases
where the recipient is the beneficial
owner.
(ggg) A 5% rate applies if the recipient is the
beneficial owner of the interest and
one of the following conditions is met:
(1) the interest is beneficially owned
by a government, a central bank,
the National Treasury Management
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Agency of Ireland, the National
Pensions Reserve Fund of Ireland or
any wholly or mainly governmentowned entity, or (2) the interest is paid
on a loan guaranteed or approved by
a government or a loan to finance the
purchase of industrial, commercial,
trade, medical or scientific equipment.
(hhh) A 5% rate applies if the recipient is
beneficial owner of the interest. A 0%
rate applies if the beneficial owner of
the income is a government, a political
subdivision or a local authority, a
national bank or any other institution
that is wholly or mainly governmentowned.
(iii)

A 0% rate applies if the beneficial
owner of the income is the
Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority, the Exchange
Fund, or any institution wholly or
mainly owned by the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative

Region as may be agreed upon
from time to time by the competent
authorities.
(jjj)

A 3% rate applies if the recipient of
royalties for the use of, or right to
use, aircraft is the beneficial owner
of the royalties. A 5% rate applies in
other cases where the recipient is the
beneficial owner. A 15% rate applies in
all other cases.

(kkk) A 0% rate applies if the beneficial
owner of the interest is a government,
a central bank, a statutory body, a
bank or any institution that is wholly
or mainly government-owned as may
be agreed upon from time to time by
the competent authorities. A 5% rate
applies if the recipient of the income
is the beneficial owner. A 10% rate
applies in all other cases.
(lll)

A 0% rate applies where interest is paid
to a government, a local authority or a
central bank.

EY in the CIS
Belarus

Atyrau

Minsk

Satpayev St., 19
Atyrau 060000
Tel.: +7 (7122) 552 100
Fax: +7 (7122) 552 101

Okeanski Ave., 17
Vladivostok 690091
Tel.: +7 (423) 265 8383
Fax: +7 (423) 265 8384

Nur-Sultan
Kosmonavtov St., 62A, 9th floor
Nur-Sultan, 010000
Tel.: +7 (7172) 580 400
Fax: +7 (7172) 580 410

Ekaterinburg

K. Tsetkin St., 51A, 15 floor
Minsk 220004
Tel: +375 (17) 240 4242
Fax: +375 (17) 240 4241
th

Azerbaijan

Baku
Port Baku Business Center
Neftchilar Ave., 153, 9th floor
Baku AZ1010
Tel.: +994 (12) 490 7020
Fax: +994 (12) 490 7017
Armenia

Yerevan
Nord Business Center
Severny Ave.,1, Office 27
Yerevan 0001
Tel.: +374 (10) 500 790
Fax: +374 (10) 500 706
Georgia

Tbilisi

Kyrgyzstan

Bishkek
Abdrakhmanova St., 191
Bishkek 720011
Tel: +996 (312) 665 997
Russia

Moscow
Sadovnicheskaya Nab., 77, bld. 1
Moscow 115035
Tel.: +7 (495) 755 9700
Fax: +7 (495) 755 9701

Moscow

Kote Abkhazi St., 44
Tbilisi 0105
Tel.: +995 (32) 215 8811
Fax: +995 (32) 215 8822

Paveletskaya Square, 2, bld. 2
Moscow 115054
Tel.: +7 (495) 755 9700

Kazakhstan

Belye Nochi Business Center
Malaya Morskaya St., 23
St. Petersburg 190000
Tel.: +7 (812) 703 7800
Fax: +7 (812) 703 7810

Almaty
Esentai Tower
Al-Farabi Ave., 77/7
Almaty 050060
Tel.: +7 (727) 258 5960
Fax: +7 (727) 258 5961

St Petersburg

Vladivostok

Palladium Business Center
Khokhryakova St., 10
Ekaterinburg 620014
Tel.: +7 (343) 378 4900
Fax: +7 (343) 378 4901

Kazan

Rostov-on-Don

League of Nations Business
Centre
Suvorova St., 91
Rostov-on-Don 344022
Tel.: +7 (863) 261 8400
Fax: +7 (863) 261 8400

Togliatti

Frunze St., 14B, Office 413
Togliatti 445037
Tel.: +7 (8482) 99 9777
Fax: +7 (8482) 99 9700

Suvar Plaza Business Center
Spartakovskaya St., 6
Office 1214
Republic of Tatarstan
Kazan 420107
Tel.: +7 (843) 567 3333
Fax: +7 (843) 567 3337

Ukraine

Krasnodar

Uzbekistan

Sovietskaya St., 30,
Offices 1106 and 1108
Krasnodar 350063
Tel.: +7 (861) 210 1212
Fax: +7 (861) 210 1211

Tashkent

Novosibirsk

Kyiv
Khreshchatyk St., 19A
Kyiv 01001
Tel.: +380 (44) 490 3000
Fax: +380 (44) 490 3030

Inkonel Business Centre
Mustakillik Ave., 75, 3rd floor
Tashkent 100000
Tel.: +998 (71) 140 6482
Fax: +998 (71) 140 6483

Sovietskaya St., 5, 10th floor
Novosibirsk 630102
Tel.: +7 (383) 211 9007
Fax: +7 (383) 211 9008
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Key contacts in Belarus
Pavel Laschenko, FCCA
Managing Partner
for Belarus
pavel.laschenko@by.ey.com

Vasily Babariko
Senior Manager, Law
Mob.: +375 (29) 700 3025
vasily.babariko@by.ey.com

Ivan Stankevich, FССА
Associate Partner,
Assurance
Mob.: +375 (29) 700 3012
ivan.stankevich@by.ey.com

Kiryl Domnitch, CISA, CISM
Senior Manager, Advisory
Mob.: +375 (29) 700 3001
kiryl.domnitch@by.ey.com

Svetlana Gritsouk
Director, Tax
Mob.: +375 (29) 623 0274
svetlana.gritsouk@by.ey.com
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EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory
About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and
advisory services. The insights and quality services we deliver
help build trust and confidence in the capital markets and in
economies the world over. We develop outstanding leaders
who team to deliver on our promises to all of our stakeholders.
In so doing, we play a critical role in building a better working
world for our people, for our clients and for our communities.
EY works together with companies across the CIS and assists
them in realizing their business goals. 5,500 professionals
work at 19 CIS offices (in Moscow, Ekaterinburg, Kazan,
Krasnodar, Novosibirsk, Rostov-on-Don, St. Petersburg,
Togliatti, Vladivostok, Almaty, Atyrau, Nur-Sultan,
Baku, Bishkek, Kyiv, Minsk, Tashkent, Tbilisi, Yerevan).
EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or
more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited,
each of which is a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global
Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, does not
provide services to clients. For more information about
our organization, please visit ey.com.
© 2020 Ernst & Young LLC.
All Rights Reserved.

